
PART II OF THE AMENDED OFFERING STATEMENT 

AMENDING THE SEPTEMBER 9, 2022, OFFERING STATEM ENT 

(EXHIBIT A TO FORM CA) 

January 3 1, 2023 

Up to $5,000,000 Senior Unsecured Notes 

Minimum Ta,·gct Amount: $500,000 

Up to 5,000 Notes of $1,000 Par Value 

The Italian Cafe, LLC (the "Company," "we." "us", or "our"). is offering up to $5.000,000 
worth of Senior Unsecured Notes of the Company (the "Notes"). Purchasers of Notes are 
sometimes referred to herein as "Purchasers". The minimum target offering is $500,000. 
(the "Target Amount"). This offering is being conducted on a best-efforts basis and the 
Company must reach its Target Amount of $500,000 . by April 30, 2023. Un less the 
Company raises at least the Target Amount of$500,000 (the "Closing Amount") by April 
30, 2023, no Notes will be sold in this offering, investment commitments wi ll be cancel led, 
and committed fu nds will be returned . The Company wi ll accept oversubscriptions in 
excess of the Target Amount up to $5.000,000 (the "Maximum Amount") on a first come, 
fi rst served basis before April 30, 2023, as long as the Company has raised the C losing 
Amount. If the Company reaches its C losing Amount prior to April 30. 2023 , the Company 
may conduct the first of multiple closings. provided that the offering has been posted fo r 
2 1 days and that investors who have committed fu nds will be provided no tice five business 
days prior to the close. The minimum number of Notes that can be purchased is Two (2). 
representing a $2,000 minim um investment per Purchaser (which may be waived by the 
Company, in its sole and abso lute discretion). The offer made hereby is subject to 
modification, prior sale and withdrawal at any time. 
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A CROWDFUNDING INVESTMENT INVOLVES RISK. YOU SHOULD NOT INVEST ANY 
FUNDS IN TIIIS OFFERING UNLESS YOU CAN AFFORD TO LOSE YOUR ENTI RE INVESTMENT. 

IN MAKING AN INV ESTMENT DECISION, INVl~STO RS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN 
EXAMINATION OF THE ISSUER AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCLUDING T HE 
MERITS AND RISKS I NVOLVED. THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN 
RECOMMENDED OR APPROVED BY ANY FEDERAL OR STA T E SECURITIES 
COMMISSION OR R EGULATORY AUTHORITY. FURTHERMORE, THESE 
AUTHORITIES HAV E NOT PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS 
DOCUMENT. 

TJIE U.S . SECUR ITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION DOES NOT PASS UPON THE 
MERITS OF ANY SECURITIES OFFERED OR THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, NOR DOES 
IT PASS UPON THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF ANY OFFERING, DOCUMENT 
OR LITERATURE. 

THESE SECU RIT IES ARE OFFERED UNDER AN EXEMPT IO N FROM 
REGISTRATION; HOW EVE R , THE U.S. SECURITIES ANO EXC HA NGE 
COMMISSION IIAS NOT MADE AN IND EPENDENT DET E RMINATION THAT THESE 
SECURITrns ARE EXEMPT FROM REG ISTRATION. 

AN ISSUER FILING THIS FORM FOR AN OFFERING I N R ELIANCE ON 
SECTION 4(A)(6) OF T H E SECURITIES ACT AND PURSUANT TO 
R EGULATION CROWD FUNDING (§227.100-503) MUST DISCLOSE IN THE 
OFFERING STATEMENT T IIAT IT WILL FILE A REPORT ON EDGAR 
ANNUALLY AND POST THE REPORT ON ITS WEBSITE, NO LATER TIIAN 120 DAYS 
AFTER TIIE END OF EAC II FISCAL YEAR COVERED BY THE REPORT. THE ISSUER 
MAY TERMINATE ITS REPORTI NG OBLIGATIONS IN THE FUTURE IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH RUL E 202(8) OF REG ULATION CROWD FUNDING (§227.202(8)) 

THIS FORM C IS NOT AN OFl<' RR IN ANY JURISDICTION IN WJIICH AN OFFER IS NOT 
PERMUTED. ONLY THE ISSUER AND TIIE INTERMEDIARY ARE AUTHORIZED TO DISCUSS 
THE SECURITIES, OR MAKE ANY STATEMENTS OR SUPPLY ANY INFORMATION ABOUT 
THE SECURITIES OTHER THAN TIIE CONTENTS OF T IIIS FORM C. 

EACH INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT HIS OR HER OWN FINANCIAL ADVISER, 
COUNSEL AND AC COUNT ANT AS TO L EG AL, TAX AND RELATED MATTERS 
CONCERNING ms OR JIER INVESTMENT. THE INFORMATION IN THIS FORM C IS NOT 
MEANT TO CONSTITUTE SUC II ADVICE. 

TIIE ISSUER MUST FILE AN ANNUAL REPORT ON l•ORM C, AS REQUIRED BY REGULATION 
CROWDFUNDING 17 CFR 227.100-503, NO LATER THAN 120 DAYS AFTER THE ISSUER'S 
FISCAL YEAR END COVERED BY THE REPO RT AND INCLU DE THE INFORMATION 
REQU IRED BY RULE 20 1(A}, (B}, (C), (D), (E), (F), (M), (P), (Q), (R), (S), AND (T) OF 
RE GULATION C ROWD FUN DIN G 17 CF R 227.201(A), (B), (C), (D), (E), (F), (M), (P), (Q), (R), 
(S), AND (T). FOR PUIU•OSES OF PARAGRAPH (T}, Tl-IE ISSUER SHALL PROVIDE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE HIGHEST AGGREGATE TARGET OFFERING AMOUNT 
PREVIOUSLY PROVID ED IN AN OFFERING STATEMENT. TII E ISSUER'S FISCAL YEAR END 
IS DECEMBER 3 1. THEREFORE, THE ISSUER'S FIRST ANNUAL REPORT WILL BE FILED 
WITH TH E SEC ON FORM C NO LATER THAN APRIL 30, 2023, AND THE ANNUA L REPORT 
WILL BF, AVAILABLE ON THE ISSUER'S WEBSITE ON THAT DATE. THE ISSUERS ANNUAL 
REPORTS WILL BE FILED BEFORE APRIL30 OF EAC H YEA R AND WILL BE AVA ILABLE ON 
TH R ISSUERS WEBSITE AFTER FILING. 
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Forward-Looking Statements 

This disclosure document contains forward-looking statements and information 
relating to among other things, the Company, its business plan and strategy. and its 
industry. These forward-looking statements are based on the beliefs of. assumptions 
made by. and infonnation currently avail abl e to the Company 's managemen t. When 
used in thi s di scl osure document and the Company offering materials, the words 
"estimate", "project", "believe". "anticipate", "intend''. "ex pect", and simi la r 
expressions are intended to identify forward-l ooking statements. These statements 
reflect management's current views w ith respect to future events and are subject to ri sks 
and uncerta inties that could cause the Company's actual results to differ materially from 
those contai ned in the forward-looking statements. Inves tors are cautioned not to place 
undue reliance on these forward-looking statements to reflect events or c irc um stances 
afte r such statements or to re flect the occurrence of unanticipated events. 
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OFFERING SUMMARY 
Company ("Issuer") The Italian Cafe, LLC: The Issuer was organized on 

20 1 (a) July 14, 20 14 in the State of lllinois as a series Illinois 
lim ited liabi litv comoanv. 

Company Website www.goital iancafe.com 

Busi ness Address 21 020 N. Rand Road, Suite C4, Lake Zurich, IL 
60047. 

Type of Security Offering Debt ("Notes"). 
Offering Price 20 I (I) $ 1,000. Per Note. 
Target Amount of Offering $500,000 
Maximum Amount of Offering $5,000,000 
Minimum Investment per Investor $2,000 or 2 Two Notes. 

Interest Rate and Maturity D ate l 0% Coupon Rate of I ntercst paid Quarterly and 
applied to the outstanding Principal balance Maturity 
4/30/2033; Dated Date of the Notes is 4/30/2023. 

Offering Costs We estimate that the costs of th is offering will be 
a pproximate ly Ten T ho usand Dollars ($ 10,000), 
including costs for attornev's and accounting fees. 

Term of Offering Subject to earlier termination described below, this 
offering wi ll terminate not later than April 30, 2023, 
unless extended by us fo r up to an additional 
30 days and may be terminated by us earl ier without 
prior notice and before a ll of the Notes are sold. 

Escrow o f Proceeds Proceeds from th is offering wi ll be placed in escrow. If 
for any reason the minimum proceeds are not deposited 
into the escrow on or before April 30,2023 this offering 
wi ll term inate with no Notes being sold, investment 
commitments wi ll be cancelled, and the funds wil l be 
returned to investors w ithout interest and without 
deduct ion therefrom. 

Selling Commissions The Notes will be sold by management and employees 
who wil l receive their regu lar salary and no sel ling 
commissions for sa le of the Notes. 

Closings lfwe reach the target offering amount ($500,000)prior 
to the offering deadline, we wi ll continue to se ll the 
Notes on a ftrs t come ftrst served basis up to tile 
maximum offering and w ill conduct t he first of 
mu ltiple c los ings of the offering early. if we 
provide not ice about the new offering deadl ine at 
least five business days prior (absent a material 
change that would require an extension of the offering 
and reconfirmation of the in vestment commitment). 

Use of Proceeds Net proceeds from this offering will be al located as 
needed to exoand ooerations. 

Risk Factors The Notes offered hereby are speculative and involve a 
high degree of ri sk and should not be purchased by 
investors who cannot afford the loss of the ir entire 
investment. 
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RISK FACTORS 201 (f) 

The Notes offered herein are hig t,ly speculative in nature, involve a high degree of risk and 
should he purchased only by persons ivho cw, afford to lose their entire investment. 
Accordingly, prospective investors should care.fully consider, along with ot!,er matters 
referred to herein, th e .followi11g risk factors in evaluating the Company and its business 
be.fore purclzasiug the Notes offered h ereby. 

Risk Factors: The securities offered by the Issuer arc $1,000.00 Notes with equal quarterly payments 

amortized over ten years at I 0% interest. They arc unsecured debt instruments of the Issuer and arc not 

stock or membership interests. As debt instruments, they arc senior to the member's equity. They may be 

prepaid by the Issuer at any time after the first year, by paying the unamortized principal balance at that 

time. The securities do not provide the holder with any voting rights or other ownership rights in the 

Issuer. 

The Issuer's ability to pay the Notes is completely dependent upon the success of the resta urant, 

bar and video gaming operations of the tenants o f each designated Series. The Bus iness strategy 

relics on the Base Rent received by the Series from the restaurant operator being sufficient to pay 

the Series underlying rent or acquisition payments and pay the monthly payments due the Issuer 

on its Loan. Over and above the Base Rent, each Series expects to receive percentage rent from 

food and beverage sales of 15% of food and beverage sa les, in excess of the Base /\mount, and 

percentage rent of 50% of all other income including income from video gaming. 

The percentage rent, especially the percentage rent received from video gam ing, is 

expected to provide extensive prolits and liquidity to each Series, ensuring that it has the liquidity 

make the Loan payments to The Ita lian cafe, LLC, so that it wi ll have the cashOow to pay the 

Note ho lders. 

With the maximum raise o f $5,000,000, T he ltaliat1 Cafe, LLC's Series s hould have the 

ability to acquire 20 or more restaurants. With that volume, ifa few locations have prob lems, the 

revenue from the other Series should more than cover The Ital ian Cafe, LLC Note payments. 
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The risk is, If the restaurant tenants arc unable to generate adequate revenue and earnings, they will 

not be able to pay their re nt obl igations to the Issuer's Series, and accordingly the Series will have to pay its 

loan obligations to Issuer without the rent from the restaurant tenant until the restaurant tenant is evicted 

and a new restau rant tenant leases the restaurant. In the event an Issuer's Series is unable to pay the loan 

payme nts to the Issuer, the Issuer w ill have to pay the Notes without the income from that Series. In the event a 

number oflssuer's Series are unable to make payments on their loans to the Issuer at the same time and if the 

t ime to re- lease these restaurants is extensive, Issuer's ability to pay the Note payments would be 

materia lly adversely affected. I Ience, any risk to the restaurant t enants of Issuer's Ser ies is also a r isk to 

the Iss uer that should be cons idered. The restaurants may not be profitab le, and the locations may be 

difficu lt to re- lease for a number of considerations. The investment is therefore speculative and suitable only 

for individua ls who arc financially able to lose their total investment. 

The restaurant businesses in each loca tion arc new businesses in a highly competitive 

indu stry. Although the Issuer and each of its designated Series wi ll attempt to choose good locations and 

lease only to experienced restaurant and bar operators, each restaurant wi ll be a new business subject to all 

the risks inherent in a new business, and the restaurant and bar bus iness is a high ly competitive business. 

The Issuer's success is high ly dependent upon the Issue r 's Series' Manager's ab ili ty to locate and 

acquire good locations and choose qua! ificd restaurant operators as tenants. 

Unfo reseen circum stances. Events such as terrorism or war, public health issues, fire, natural 

d isasters, and other factors such as high levels of unemployment, changes in consumer confidence and 

spending or purchasing habit changes, increased com petition, government regulat ion and many other events or 

factors cou ld have an effect on the restaurant, bar and v ideo gaming tenant's abili ty lo operate successfully. 

Cha nges in laws and reg ulati ons. T he restauran t, bar and video gaming tenant operations 

could be affected by changes in th e current federal, state or local liquor laws, gaming laws, minimum wage 

and overtime laws or other laws or regulat ions. Loss of a business license, liquo r license or gami ng license 

could have a material adverse effect on the tenant's operation . 

Insufficient proceeds. The proceeds of the sale o f the oles may be insufficient to provide the 
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liquidity the Issuer needs to loan the fund s needed to each of its des ignated series to build out or remode l 

the acqui red properties, to carry the properties during the time it takes to lease or re-lease the properties and 

market conditions may make raising additional capital or borrowing additional money difficult. 

The Loss of Issuers Managers. The loss of the Issuer's Managers cou ld adversely affect the 

business. Each Manager is critical to the Issuer's success. If the Issuer loses the services of either Manager, 

promoting the business and raising additiona l capital would be severely impacted and the business could fail. 

The Company docs not currently maintain key person life insurance on any of the Managers. 

The Issuer has and will continu e to engage in certain transactions with related pe rso ns. The 

investor should be aware that there wou ld .be occasions when the Issuer may encounter potential conflicts of 

interest in its operations. On any issue involving conflicts of interest, the Managers and the Members of the 

Issuer will be gu ided by their good fai th and judgment as to the Issuer's best interest. The Issuer may engage 

in transactions with affiliates, subsid iaries or other related parties, which may be on terms, which arc not 

arm's- length, but wi ll be in al l cases consistent with the duties of the management of the Issuer to its creditors 

including the Note holders. Transactions with related parties of Issuer or its members cou ld result in higher 

costs for goods and services or reduced performance to the Issuer and its designated series. The Issuer has and 

will use Christy J. Jepson and companies related to him , such as Strecker, Jepson & Associates for legal and 

fi nancial matters and Senior Homes, LLC for construction and remodeling work. The Issuer has and will use 

companies related to Ranulfo S. Vizcarra to provide various services, including sponsoring and providing and 

promoting seminars and events with transpo1iation for senior citizens to the restaurants. By purchasing a 

Note, the investor wi ll be deemed to have acknowledged the ex istence of any such actual or potential conflicts 

of interest and to have waived any claim with respect to any liability arising from the existence of any such 

confl ict of interest. 

Transfc1· rcst.-ictions. The securit ies offered have transfer restrictions. No securities may be pledged, 

transferred, resold or otherwise dis posed of by any purchaser except pursuant to 17 CFR 227.50 I wh ich states 

as fo llows: 

"(a)§ 227.50 I (a) Securities issued in a transaction exempt from registration pursuant to section 

7 



4(a)(6) o f the Securities Act ( 15 U.S.C. 77d(a)(6)) and in accordance with section 4/\ of the 

Securi ties Act (I 5 U .S.C. 77d- 1) and this part may not be transferred by any purchaser of such 

securities during the one-year period beginning when the securities were issued in a transaction 

exempt from registration pursuant to section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act ( 15 U.S.C. 77d(a){6)), 

unless such securities are transferred: 

(1 )§ 227.50 1 (a)( I) To the issuer of the securities; 

(2)§ 227.50 I (a)(2) To an accredited investor; 

(3)§ 227.50 I (a)(3) As part of an offering registered with the Commission; 

or 

(4)§ 227.501(a)(4) To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust 

controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit o f a member of the family of the 

purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or divorce of the purchaser or 

other s imilar circumstance. 

(b)§ 227.50 I (b) For purposes o f this § 227 .50 I, the term accredited investor shall mean any person 

who comes within any of the categories set forth in § 230.50 I (a) of this chapter, or who the seller 

reasonably believes comes within any of such categories, at the t ime o f the sale of the securities to that 

person . 

(c)§ 227.501 (c) for purposes of this section, the term "member of the family of the purchaser" or the 

equivalent includes a child , stepchild , grandchild , parent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse or 

spousal equivalent, s ibling, mother-in-law, father- in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, 

or sister-in-law of the purchaser and shall include adoptive relationships. For purposes of this 

paragraph (c), the term spousal equ ivalent means a cohabitant occupy ing a relationship generally 

equivalent to that ofa spouse." 

Additional issuance of securities. Fo l lowing the Investor's investment in the Company, 

the Company may se ll sec urity interes ts to additional investo rs, which may be eq u ity or debt 

instruments. There is a risk associated with additional issuance of debt obligations of Issuer to the extent the 
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debt cannot be repaid from its operat ions. There is a risk that the sale of the Issuer or its Assets or the sale of 

additional equity inte rests could result in management changes or other circumstances resulting in poor 

financial performance of the Issuer or its designated Series making it more d ifficu lt for the i ssuer to make the 

payments to the holders of the securities. 

A sale of the Issue r or of the assets of the Issuer. The Note holder w i 11 have Ii m ited o r no 

ability to influence a pote ntial sale o f the Issue r or a su bstant ia l po rtion of its asse ts. Thus , the 

investo r will rely upon the executive management of the Issuer and th e members of the Issu er to 

manage the Issuer so as to prov ide income cash fl ow to pay the Note payments. Accordingly, the 

success of the investor's investmen t in the Issuer w ill depend in large pa r t upon the skill a nd 

expertise of th e exec utive management of th e Iss uer and the mem bers of the Issue r . If the 

members of the Issuer au thorize a sa le o f all or a part of th e Issuer, or a disposition of a 

su bs tantia l porti on of the Issuer ' s assets, there can be no guarantee that the value rece ived by the 

Issue r will be sufficient to pay a ll of the debt of the Iss ue r. 

Issuer's ea rly payoff of Notes. Th ere is a risk to the holders of the Notes that management wi II 

decide to pay off the Notes early resu lt ing in the security holder 's loss of future earnings from the Notes, 

which Notes could bear a greater interest rate at the time of payoff than market interest rates. 

Fixed- Income marl,et risk. The market value of a fixed-income security may decline due to genera l 

market conditions that arc not specifically related to a particular company, such as real or perceived adverse 

economic conditions, changes in the outlook for corporate earnings, changes in interest or currency rates or 

adverse investor sentiment generally. The fi xed-income securities market can be susceptible to increases in 

volatil ity and decreases in liquid ity. Liqu id ity can decline unpredictably in response to overall econom ic 

conditions or credit tightening. Increases in volati lity and decreases in liquidity may be caused by a rise in 

interest rates (or the expectation of a rise in interest rates) , which have been at or near historic lows in the 

United States and in other countries until recently. 

Interest ra te risk. Prices of bonds and other fixed rate fixed-income securities tend to move in versely 

with changes in interest rates. Typ ically, a rise in rates wil l adversely affect fixed-income securities and, 
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accordingly, will cause the value of the securities to decline. During periods of very low interest rates, which 

occur from time to time due to market forces or actions of governments and/or their central banks, including the 

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System in the U.S., the security may be subject to a greater ri sk o f 

principal dec line from r is ing interest rates. When interest rates fall, the values of already- issued fixed rate 

fixed-income securities generally rise. I lowcvcr, when interest rates fa ll , the securit ies may be at lower y ields 

and may reduce the securi ties return. The magnitude of these fluctuations in the market price of fi xed income 

securities arc generally greater for securities with longer effective maturities and durations because such 

instruments do not mature, reset interest rates or become callab le for longer periods of time. The change in 

the value of a fixed- income security or portfolio can be approximated by multiply ing its duration by a change 

in interest rates. For examp le, the market price of a fixed-income security with a duration of three years would 

be expected to dec line 3% if interest rates rose I%. Conversely, the market price of the same security would be 

expected to increase 3% if interest rates fell I%. Risks associated with rising interest rates arc heightened 

g iven that interest rates in the Un ited States and other countries have been at or near historic lows, unti l 

recently. Interest rate changes may have different effects on the values of securities sold in itia lly at higher than 

market interest rates and because of prepayment or extension provisions. 

Financia l statements. The Issuer is not requ ired by the regulations to complete an attestation about its 

financial contro ls that would be required by the Sarbancs-Oxley Act of 2002. Therefore, the Issuer has not 

s igned any attestation regarding its financ ial controls that the purchaser of the security can use to make an 

investment decision. In the event the investor believes the information provided is insufficient to make an 

adequate investment dec ision the investor shou ld not invest in this security. 

Forward-Looking statements. The d isclosures exhib its and other documents included in th is Form 

C Disclosu re, and the Form C Disclosure itse lf contain forward-look in g statements and arc subject to 

risks and uncertainties. Some of these risks have been described above. A II s tatements other than 

s tatements of historical fact or relating to present fac ts or current cond it ions included in th is Form C 

arc forward - looking statements. Forward-looking statements arc statements made by the Issuer 

describi ng the Issuer's curren t expectations and projections relat ing to its object ives, planned operating 
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results, financial expectations and future business performance. rorward-looking statements do not rela te strictly 

to historical or current facts. Th ese statements may include words such as "anticipate," "estimate," 

"expect," "project," "plan," "intend ," "believe," "may," "shou ld," "can have," "likely" and other words and 

terms of sim ilar meani ng in connection with any discussion of the timi ng or nature o f future operating or 

financ ial pe rformance or other events. The forw a rd-looking statements contained in t he disclosures 

exhibits and o ther documents inc luded in this Form C Disclosure, and the Form C Disclosure itself arc 

based on reasonable assumpt ions the Issuer has made in I ight of its industry experience, perceptions of 

historical trends , c urrent conditio ns , ex pected future developments and other factors it bel ieves arc 

appropriate under the c ircumstances. As you read and consider thi s Form C, and its exhib its, you shou ld 

understand that these statements arc not guarantees of performance or results. They in vo lve r isks and 

uncertainties that may be beyond the Iss uer' s contro l. Although the Issuer be lieves t hat th ese 

forward-looki ng statements arc reasonable, you should be aware that many factors cou ld affect its actua l 

operating and fi nancial performance and cause its performance to differ materia lly from the performance 

anticipated in the fo rward- looking statements. Should one or more of these risks or uncertai n ti es 

ma te ria l ize or sho uld any of th e Issuer' s assumptions prove incorrect or change, or shou ld fu tu re 

circumstances require a c hange in the current plans of the Issuer, the Issuer's actua l operating and financ ia l 

performance may vary in material respects from the performance projected in these forward- looking 

statements. Any forward- looking statement made by the Issuer in this Form C or a ny disclosures exh ibits 

and other documents included in this Form C Disc losure, speaks only as o f the date o f this Form C 

Disclosure. Factors or events that could cause actual operating and fin anc ia l performance to differ may 

emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for the Issuer to predict a ll of them. The Issuer undertakes no 

obligation to update any forward- looking statement, w hether as a result of new in formation , fu ture 

developme nts o r o the rwise, except as may be requi red by law. 

Best Efforts Offering. This offering is being conducted on a best-efforts basis. The placement agent is not required 

to purchase any of the Issuer's securities, nor is it obligated to sell any such securities to any Investor. Investment 

agreements ( Investment Agreements) w ill be evaluated and accepted or rejected by the Issuer as tl1ey arc received. 
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'There can be no assurnnce that the Issuer will receive investment commitments (investment commitments) for the entire 

Target Offering /\mount of$500,000.00 from the sale of the Notes offered hereby or any amount. The failure to misc 

sufficient cash may reduce the Issuers ability to make new Loans to its designated Series, but it should not affect Issuer's 

ability to pay operating expenses and would not have a material adverse effect on the Issuer's business prospects, because 

its operating expenses arc paid from repayments of the Loans it a lready made to its des ignated Series, and it 

has the ability to linance new Series acqu isitions. 

T l IE COMPANY AND ITS BUSINESS 

Business Plan 20 l (d) 

The Issuer's business is making loans to its designated Series to acquire real estate, by purchase or 

lease, estab lish, build or remodel restaurants and bars and lease or sublease those establishments to restaurant 

and bar operators that will offer food, spirits and video gam ing to the genera l public in Illinois. The Company 

and its des ignated Series arc in the Real Estate Business. Neither the Company or any of its Series plan to 

operate restaurants and bars or apply for any restaurant business license, liquor license or gaming license. The 

business plan is as follows: 

The Business Structure 

The Italian Cafe, LLC is an Ill inois series lim ited liability company, which currently has three 

designated Series, Series J\, Series l3 and Series C. In Illinois, there can be an unl imited number of series 

("Series") and each Series is treated as a separate entity. Assets and Liabilit ies of one Series arc not Assets and 

Liabi lities of any other Series and creditors of one Series cannot col lect from the members of that Series or the 

members or assets of another Series. The LLC and each Series have their own Federal Employer Identification 

Numbers, their own bank accounts and file their own tax returns. The Italian Cafe, LLC and each designated 

Series is treated as separate partnerships for tax purposes. The income and losses of each Series arc passed 

through to the members of that Series. The members of The Ital ian Cafe, LLC and all three of its designated 
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Series are M2K of Chicago, LLC, an lllinois Limited Liability Company with a 50% membership interest and 

Sen ior Homes, LLC, an Illino is Limited Liability Company with a 50% membership interest. 

The Italian Cafe, LLC will make a loan to each designated Series to purchase or lease property on a 

long- term lease, suffic ient to house a restaurant or bar establishment, to remode l or build and equip the 

establishment and ready it to open (" Loan"). Each Series wi ll sign a note payable to the Italian Cafe, LLC for 

the amount of the Loan and the Loan will be secured by e ither a first or second mortgage against the real 

estate, if the Series purchased the Real Estate, or the leasehold estate if the Series leased the real estate 

housing the restaurant. Each Series Loan will include an administration fee equal to fifteen percent ( 15%) o f 

the amount advanced to cover The Ital ian Cafe, LLC's cost to raise the money to make the Loan to the Series. 

The principal amount in the note evidencing each Series Loan wi ll be amortized over ten years with equal 

monthly payments of pri ncipal and interest at te n percent ( 10%) per annum. 

Each Series w ill then lease or sub-lease the restaurant to a restaurant or bar operator on a long- term 

lease. The lease base rent will be sufficient to cover the Series re nta l obligations on its underly ing lease or 

mortgage payments if the Series purchased the real estate, and th e payments required under the note 

evidencing the Loan made by The Ita lian Cafe, LLC to the Series. The base rent will be 50% of the net income 

from food and liquor sales and 50% of al l othe r income, such as the income generated by the establishment 

from the video gaming machines ("Base Rent"). The Base Rent will be adjusted quarterly. 

Video Gaming 

Illino is issues gaming licenses to restaurant or bar estab lishments w ith a liquor license located in a 

city or county that has approved v ideo gaming. /\.s o f September I, 2022, most of the c it ies and counties in 

Illinois have approved video gaming. 

Ill inois receives a monthly Video Gam ing Tax distribution of34% of the monthly Net Terminal 

Income and out of that pays the city or county 5% of the monthly Net Terminal Income keeping 29% of the 

monthly Net Termina l Income. Net Terminal Income is the d ifference between the amount taken in by the 
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March 2022 

Terminal (Video Game) and the funds paid out by the Terminal. The Net Wagering Activity is the difference 

between the Amount Played and the Amount Won by the players. The licensed terminal operator, the 

company licensed to provide the video gaming machines, receives 32.57435% of the monthly Net Terminal 

Income and the licensed establishment receives 32.57435% of the month ly Net Terminal Income. 

The licensed terminal operator cannot receive an establishment license and the licensed establishment 

cannot have a terminal operator license. The terminal operator provides and mainta ins t he machines and the 

payout machine, which pays any winnings to the machine player. The terminal operator will pay the cost of 

the electrical installation of the video gaming machines in the establishment. 

According to the Illinois Gaming Board Video Gaming Report for the month of March 2022, there 

were 7,917 licensed establ ishments in Illinois housing a total of 42,525 video gaming mach ines. Each licensed 

establishment is limited to a maximum o f 6 machines. The average number of machines per licensed 

establishment in March 2022 was 5.37 1. In March 2022, $2,964,606,258.4 1 was played in the 42,525 licensed 

machines in Illinois, or $69,7 14.43 per licensed machine. $2,715,050,876 .36 was won by players o n those 

machines, or $63,845.99 per licensed machine. The Net Terminal Income in March 2022 was 249,560,445.02, 

or $5,868.56 per licensed machine. (See Figure /). 

figure I: 

Establishment VGT 
Count Count 

7,917 42,525 

ILLINOIS GAMING BOARD 
VIDEO GAMING REPORT 

Statewide Allocation Summary 
March 2022 

VGT Wagering Activity 

Amount Amount Net Wagering 
Played Won Activity Funds In 

$2,964,606,258.41 $2,715,050,876.36 $249,555,382.05 $973,351 ,844.00 
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VGT Income 

Net Terminal 
Funds Out Income 

$723,791,398 98 $249,560,445.02 
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An establishment in March 2022, with 6 machines, each with average net terminal income of 

$5,868.56, would have a total net terminal income of $35,2 11.36 of which 32.57435% or $ 1 1,469.88 would be 

the profit for that establ ishment for the month. Annualized, that amounts to $ 137,638.56 profit for the year. 

Many establishments use marketing to make the existence of their machines known to the public and 

o ffer incentives such as $5.00 of free play for c ustomers using their mach ines. The establishment can offer the 

player food or beverage except liquor. For instance, the establishment marketing plan could offer $5.00 in free 

play, paid for by the establishment. The licensed termina l operator may pay 50% of the ongoing 

establishment's advertising costs, as long as, the terminal operator is mentioned in the advertis ing. 

Many of the establishments that market the opportunity for players to play the machines in their 

estab lishment generate net terminal income well in excess of $100,000 per month, more than $1,000,000.00 

per year. That is why the restaurant and bar operators arc so anxious to open new establishments, to enjoy the 

huge gaming profits. 

M2K of Chicago, LLC, a member of the Company, owns a number of healthcare compan ies, 

operating under the name ITcalthcare Plus, providing home healthcare and caregiver scrviccrs to senior 

citizens. The home healthcare companies provide, nursing, medical care, physical therapy and hospice 

services. 

The llealthcare Plus caregiver companies employ approximately 6,500 caregivers providing aid to 

approximately 6,500 senior c itizens in the ir homes all over Ill inois. The I Icalthcarc Plus caregiver companies 

help the sen iors with everyday living requirements, such as bathing, dressing, cooking, cleaning, washing 

c lothes, procuring groceries, getting med icine and other travel ing requirements. 

Many of the seniors look forward to opportunities to go out and socialize with other seniors. The 

l lcalthcare Plus caregiver companies have implemented a program where the seniors arc taken by thei r 

caregivers to restaurants in groups of20 or 30 at each restaurant, where they can get a meal and socialize. 
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Healthcare Plus offers seminars to those sen iors. Doctors, nurses, pharmacists, lawyers and other 

professionals speak about subjects of interest to the seniors. Entertainment is also offered in the form of 

games, music, karaoke, bar bingo and video gaming. We believe the restaurant and bar operators will find 

these programs will greatly enhance their food, beverage and v ideo gaming profits, and each of the 

Company's Series percentage rent. 

Bus iness Strategy 

The Ital ian Cafe, LLC plans to implement its business plan by leveraging opportunit ies created by 

video gaming to aid the restaurant industry in its recovery from the recent pandemic. 

Because of the pandemic, there arc many experienced, seasoned, restaurant operators that do not have 

the capital lo open a restaurant or bar business or expand their existing business lo take advantage of the video 

gaming profit opportunities provided by the State of Illinois. There arc also many existing restaurant and bar 

facilities ava ilab le lo purchase or lease, because they were vacated during the pandemic. 

The Ita lian Cafe, LLC designated Series intends lo purchase or long- term lease restaurant or bar 

facilities, remodel them, and lease or sub lease them, to experienced restaurant and bar operators that w ill offer 

food, spirits and v ideo gaming to the public. 

Each of the Company's Series, as a landlord, will recover its capi tal and a profit through the lease to 

the operator of the restaurant and bar. The restaurant and bar operator wi ll app ly for its liquor and gaming 

license and autonomously operate the business, for as long as the rent is paid. In the event the operator has a 

problem with a license or doesn't meet its obligations, the Series is protected by the lease. If the Operator 

de fau lts under the lease, the Series can terminate the lease and lease the establ ishment to a different operator. 

With th is structure, the restaurant operator can lease and run a res taurant operation without having to 

expend a large amount of money. The restaurant operator wi ll only need to purchase food and liquor 

inventory, pay for its licenses, pay for menus, signage and initial marketing and operating costs to open the 

restaurant and bar. 
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For example, a 3,000 square foot locat ion that the restaurant operator and the Series agree upon, is 

leased for 20 years by the Series at a cost of $ 15.00 per square foot gross per year or $3,750.00 per month. 

The cost to remodel and equip the space is $150,000.00. The Italian Cafe, LLC makes a Loan to the Series and 

the Series executes a note payable to The Italian Cafe, LLC and a leaseho ld mortgage for $172,500.00 

($150,000.00 plus a l 5% Fee) with monthly payments of principal and interest amortized over ten years at ten 

percent (10%) interest with payments of S2,279.60 per month. 

The Series subleases the space to the Operator for 50% of the net food and liquor sales, plus 50% of 

all other monthly income, inc luding the establishment's share of the video gam ing monthly net term ina l 

income, which is determined to be $ 11 ,834.94 per month as calculated below. This Base Rent a llows the 

Series to pay the $3 ,750.00 underlying rent and the $2,279.60 month ly Loan payment to The Italian Cafe, 

LLC. The sublease also has a provision to adjust the Base Rent quarterly . 

Based on the assumption that the establ ishment generates net v ideo gaming revenue to the operator of 

the average monthly amount of $1 1,469.88, and assuming that the operator' s gross monthly food and liquor 

sales arc $40,667.00, food and liquor costs arc 30% of sales or $12,200. 00, labor costs arc 30% o f sales, or 

$ 12,200.00 and a ll other costs arc 10%, or 4,067.00, the operator's net profit from food and beverage before 

rent would be 30% of gross sales, or $ 12,200.00 and his net profit inc luding gaming before rent would be 

23,669.88 ($ 11 ,469.88+ 12,200.00). After paying rent of$ 1 l ,834.94, the operator would have netted 

$1 1,834.94 for the month. The operator would generate this income w ith little investment of its own . 

Assuming an average investment of $200,000 00 per location, the $5,000,000.00 raise could open at 

least 20 locations. Based on the assumpt ions stated above, with only average net video gam ing revenue those 

20 locations could generate$ I 16, I 06.80 per month or $1 ,393,28 1.60 per year, while paying off the 

$5,000,000.00 raise over ten yea rs at I O'Yo interest. With a little marketing and the Healthcare Plus sen ior 

program, both the restaurant operator and the Series could generate far greater profits . 

The Company's Series C leased and remodeled a 5,100 square foot restaurant located at 504 W. 

Northwest l lighway in Palatine, lllinois and subleased it to Annie 's Restaurant. Annie's generates suffici ent 
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monthly income to pay Series C the Base Rent. With the Base Rent, Series C pays the underlying rent and 

makes the payments to The Ita lian Cafe, LLC on the Loan made to remodel the premises. /\nnie 's Restaurant 

has a liquor license and a gaming license from the State of Illinois. Annie's has signed an agreement wilh a 

termina l operator to supply the video gaming machines and has applied for its gam ing license from the Village 

o f Palatine. As soon as it receives that license, Annie 's wi ll install the video gaming machines. Annie's is 

a lready using the I lealthcarc Plus senior program. 

The Company 's Series A has entered into a contract to purchase a 5,800 square foot restaurant and 

Bar called the Tender Trap, including the 19,000 squa re foot shopping cente r housing the Tender Trap, located 

at IO 1-109 S. I lals ted Street in Chicago I !eights, Illinois for $880,000.00. The Italian Cafe, LLC is loan ing 

Series C sufficient money for a down payment and some remodeling costs, Series C is financing fthe 

remainder of the purchase price. 

Series C is leas ing the property lo an operator that is taking over the Tender Trap for a Base Rent of 

$14,629.00 per month plus Cam and Taxes of $3,480.00 per month. T he Base Rent is sufiic ient to pay the 

monthly mortgage payments on the first mortgage and the monthly second mortgage payments on the Loan 

from The Ita lian Cafe, LLC and the Base Rent adjusts quarterly. 

The Tender Trap's nel term inal income in 202 I was $5 13,000.00, $ I 70,000.00 was tender trap's 

share. The Tender Trap operators wi ll implement I Ieallhcare Plus sen ior program. 30 seniors and caregivers, 3 

Lime per week would bring 360 new people per month to the Tender Trap. I f each on played$ I 00.00 on the 

video machines, the net termina l income would increase by $36,000.00 per month and Tender Trap's share of 

that would be an additiona l monthly pro fit of $ 11 ,726.76, an addit iona l annual profit of $140,721 .1 9. 

The In vestment - Description of Securi ties 

The Issuer intends to sel l 5,000, $ I ,000. Notes, with a two (2) Note Minimum from The Ital ian Cafe, 

LLC, total ing up to $5,000,000. Each Note will bear inte rest at I 0% per annum with 40 equa l quarterly 

payments of princ ipal and interest fully amorti zing the Notes over ten years. Interest w ill accrue from th e 

Dated Date of the Notes. The Notes may be prepaid by the Issuer at any time after the fi rst year by pay ing the 
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unamortized principal balance at that time. Any in vestor whose Note is prepaid, will be welcome to invest in 

any new offering of The Italian Cafe, LLC or any offering made by any of the Italian Cafe, LLC's Series. The 

notes arc senior unsecured debt instruments and therefore senior to the member's equ ity interest. 

OWNER.SI IIP AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE 20 I (c)(m) 

M2K of C hicago, LLC, an Ill ino is limited liability company is a fifty percent (50%) member of the 

Issuer and Senior Homes, LLC, an Illinois limited liabi lity company, is a fifty percent (50%) member o f 

the Issuer. 

The membership interest of M2K of Chicago, LLC is owned nineteen percent ( I 9%) by The Ranulfo 

S. Vizcarra Revocable Trust dated October 9, 2007 as amended on June I 7, 2008 and March 20, 2014, of 

which Ranulfo S. Vizcarra is the sole trustee and beneficiary unt il his death ("Ranulfo Trust") and ninety one 

(8 l %) by the Annabel Rose Vizcarra Trust dated August 24, 2016, of which Annabel Rose Vizcarra, is the 

sole beneficiary and Christy J. Jepson is the sole trustee. Ranul fo S. V izcarra is the manager ofM2K of 

Chicago, LLC. 

The membership Interest of Senior llomes, LLC is owned as follows: 

(11.00%) by Christy J. Jepson, ( 13.34%) by Patricia A. Jepson, (13.33%) by Charles P. Jepson, (13.33%) by 

M ichae l Drew, (24.50%) by Tracy L. Paris, and (24.50%) by Fred J. Jepson. Charles P. Jepson and Christy J. 

Jepson arc managers of Sen ior Homes, LLC. 

FINANCIAL CONDITION 20 l (p)(s) 

Financia l Condition and Indebtedness of the Issuer: The Issuer was formed on July 14, 2014. The 

2019, 2020 and 202 1 Audited Balance Sheets indicate Members' Equity of $15 1,812 in 2019, $1 19,5 11 in 

2020 and $222,033 in 2021. $58,03 1 was due to Senior 1-lomcs, LLC inc lud ing interest al the rate of I 0% per 

year through 20 19, $ 97,875 through 2020 and $99,807 through 202 1. The Asset portion of the Balance sheet 

indicates that $83,845 was due with interest at the rate of I 0% per annum from The Italian Cafe, LLC Series C 
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in 20 19, $81 ,9 12 in 2020 and $75,263 in 202 1. The balance sheet shows $125,702 was due from Lu ig i's Food & 

Pizza, LLC and one of Luigi's members with interest in 20 19, $ 135,231 in 2020 and $ 144,759 in 202 1. The 

Italian Cafe, LLC is suing Lu ig i's Food & Pizza and one of its members on a note they signed and for 

advances made by The Italian Cafe, LLC to them at the time of their occupancy as a tenant of Series C in 

20 14. They vacated Series C's restaurant property in 201 5 and the prope1ty was released on January I, 20 16. 

The Issuer's income statement shows net income in 20 19 of$8,720, $7,699 in 2020 and $5,022 in 

2021, primarily from in terest income paid from Series C. 

In 2022 and beyond, the Issuer expects to receive principal and interest payments from Series C and its 

other des ignated Series on funds it will advance to open additional establishments. The Issuer expects to 

col lect principal and interest on those funds advanced at I 0% per annum and pay interest at I 0% per annum 

with principal payments to the Note holders that provided the funds. T he Italian Cafe, L LC Seri es C 

and the othe r des ig na te d Series that ha ve developed a nd leased a n establishment, wi ll make 

these payments from the Base Rent it receives from the tena nt. 

The Base Rent received by the Series is expected to be sufficient to pay the Series 

underlying rent o r acquisition payments and pay the monthly payments due the Issuer on its Loan. 

over and above the Base Rent. 

The Base Rent is expec ted to prov ide extens ive profits and liqu idity to each Series, 

ensuring that it has the liqui d ity to m ake the Loan payme nts to The Ital ian ca fc, LLC so that it 

will have the cash fl ow to pay the Note holders. 

With the maximum raise of $5,000,000, The Italian Cafe, LLC's Series should have the 

abili ty to acquire 20 or more restaurants. With that volume, if a few locations have problems, the 

revenue from the other Series should more than cover T he Italian Cafe, LLC Note payments. 
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FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 

Year 12/31 /202 1 12/3 1/2020 12/31 /2019 

Total J\ssets $32 1,956 $218,437 $210,861 

Cash & Cash Equivalents $ 101 ,600 $25 $45 

Accounts Receivable $220,356 $218,412 $210,8 16 

Short Term Debt $116 $116 $118 

Lo ng Term Debt $99,807 $98,810 $58,931 

Revenues/Sales $16,180 $16896 $16,900 

Cost of Goods Sold $ 11 ,042 $9,081 $8,062 

T axes Paid $116 $116 $ 118 

Net Income $5,022 $7,699 $8,720 

An audit of the Issuer's financ ial statements for its 2019, 2020, and 202 1 fisca l year, in accordance 

with (t)(3) of 17 C FR 227.20 I is attached to this Form C, incorporated herein by reference and made a part 

hereof and those audited financial statements arc posted on the Issuer's Website at 

www .Goita l iancaf e.com. 

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES 

201(n) lntc1·mcdiary information: The name of the intermediary through which the offering will be 

conducted is Crowdsourcefunded.com. The Cll( number of the intermediary is 000 I 667727 . The 

SEC fil e number of the intermediary is 007-00027. T he CRD number of the intermediary is 

283378. 

20 1(0) Compensation of Intcrmcdia 1·y: The amount of compensation to be paid to the intermediary, 

whether as a do llar amount or a percentage of the offering amount, or a good faith estimate if the 

exact amount is not available at the time of the filing, for conducting the offering, including the 

21 



amount of referral and any other fees associated with the offering is Five Percent (5.0%) of the 

amount raised. Any other direct or indirect interest in the issuer held by the intermediary, or any 

arrangement for the intermediary to acquire such an interest is None. 

2 0 I (t) Iss uer Re presenta tion : The Issuer represents that , to the best of its know ledge, and belief, 

after due and reasonable inquiry, the Issuer, any member or manager of the Issuer, any promoter or other 

person compensated with respect to this offering, or any other person listed in section 17 CFR 227.503(a) in 

conn ection with this offering, has been convicted, ordered, adjudged, decreed, suspended, cxpulsed, 

barred, or the subj ect of any other event that is a disqualifying event as contemplated by 17 CFR 

227.503. 

201(v) Updates: Updates regarding the progress of the Issuer in meeting the Target Offering Amount, will 

be provided in accordance with §227.203. 

201(w) Annual Report: The Issuer's annual report will be ava ilable on the Issuer's webs ite on April 30 of 

each year. 

20l(x) No Predecessors: The Issuer has no predecessors. The Issuer has not previously failed to comply with 

the ongoing reporting requirements of §227 .202. 

201(q) Pas t exempt offerings: The Issuer has not raised money through any exempt offerings conducted 

in the past. 

201 (y) Necessary material information: There is no material information necessary in order to make the 

statements made in this Offering Statement, in light of the c ircumstances under which they were made, not 

mis leading. 

USE OF PROCEEDS 
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Best Efforts Offering. This offering is being conducted on a best-efforts bas is. The p lacement agent is not 

requ ired to purchase any of the Issuer's securities nor is it obligated to sell any such securities to any Investor. 

Investment agreements (Investment Agreements) will be evaluated and accepted or rejected by the Issuer as they 

arc received. There can be no assurance that the Issuer will receive investment commitments (Investment Commitments) 

for the entire Target Offering Amount of$500,000.00 from the sale of the Notes offered hereby or any amount. The 

fai lure to raise sufficient cash may reduce the Issuers ability to make new Loans to its designated Series, but it should not 

affect Issuer's ability to pay operating expenses and would not have a material adverse effect on the Issuer's business 

prospects, because its operating expenses arc paid from repayments of the Loans it a lready made to its 

des ignated Series, and it has the abi lity to finance new Series acqu is itions. 

20I(g) T a r get offerin g amount: The targeted offering amount is Five Hundred Thousand Dollars 

($500,000.00) or the sale of Five I Jundred (500) One Thousand Dollar ($1,000.00) Notes (Target Offering 

Amount) and the deadline to reach the Target Offering Amount is April 30, 2023 (Offering Deadline). In the 

event the sum of the Investment Com mit ments do not equa l o r exceed the Target Offering Amount at the 

Offering Dead line, no securit ies will be sold in the o ffering, Investment Agreements will be cancelled and 

committed fund s w ill be retu rned . 

20 I (h) Proceeds in excess of the Target Offering Amount: The Issuer will accept Investment 

Commitments in excess o f the Target Offering /\mount on a first-come, firs t-served bas is up to a 

maximum of Five Million Dol lars ($5,000,000 .00) or the sale of Five Thousand (5,000) One Thousand 

Dollar ($1,000.00) Notes. 

201(i) The purpose and use of the offering proceeds: The Italian Cafe, LLC will use these funds to pay the 

cost of marketing and sel ling the Notes, pay its debt, including debt owed to its Managers or Members or return 

pa rt of its capi tal , pay ongoing operating costs and to loan funds to any of its designated Series at I 0% per 

annum interest with equal month ly payme nts of principal and interest to fully amortize the Loans over IO years . 

These Loans w ill al low each Series to pay their debts, ongoing operating costs and obligations and to acquire, 
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lease, remodel or build and equip individual restaurant and bar establishments in areas where video gaming has 

been approved, as described in the Business Plan above. 

The listed use of proceeds is the present expectation of the Issuer. The Issuer will have the right to alter the use 

of proceed in its discretion based upon the future c ircumstances of the Issuer. Proceeds of the offering will be 

used in part to pay obligations and/or return cap ita l of the Issuer to its Members and to pay companies related to 

its Managers or Members. The Notes arc unsecured debt instruments and arc senior to the member's equ ity. 

The Company has not raised capital in any past Exempt Offering. The Company has conducted lim ited Test 

the Waters marketing in an effort to assess potential interest among Registered Investment Advisers and 

others./\ copy of the marketing materia ls used a rc included as an Exhibit to th is Offering Statement. 

201(r) T ransactions with related parties: Since the beginning of the last fi scal year of the 

Issuer, January I , 2021 , the Issuer has not entered into any transaction with any of the persons 

descri bed in 17 C.F.R. 227.20 I (r)( I ),(2),(3)or( 4) in an amount in excess of 5% of the capital 

raised during the previous 12 months. The Issuer has made distributions, return of capital and 

repayment of loans to members of the Issuer. The only capital is from the members of the Issuer, 

Senior Homes, LLC and M2K of Chicago, LLC. The crowd funding raise contemplated by the 

Issuer is based on the sale of Notes, which a rc debt instruments and not capital. 5% of the Target 

Offering /\mount of $500,000.00 is $25,000.00 and there have been no transactions in that amount 

or greater between the Issuer and any of the persons or entities described in (r)( I ),(2),(3)or( 4 ). The 

Issuer has made distri buti ons, return of capital and repayment of loans to members. Since the 

organization of the Issuer on July 14, 20 14, the Issue r has received cap ital and loans due on 

demand and bearing interest at ten percent (1 0%) per annum from M2K of Chicago, LLC and 

Sen ior I Jomes, LLC. The Issuer has returned Capital and paid loans to its members and made other 

distributions to its members. Senior I Jomes, LLC and M2K of Chicago, LLC, or other companies 

owned by them or the Issuer's Managers, Ranul fo S. Vizcarra and Christy J. Jepson, have 

provided, and will provide in the futu re, construction and remodeling services, supplies, 

equipment and materi als, marketing services, computer and administrative services and other 
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services at a cost eq ual to the fair market value of the services, supplies, equipment and material 

provided to the Issuer and its designated Series. Strecker, Jepson & Associates has provided, and 

will provide in the future, lo the extent not prohibited by connict, corporate, tax, fi nancial, security 

and other legal and financ ial services to the Issuer and its designated Series. Ranulfo Vizcarra, 

M2k of Chicago, LLC and the IIealthcare Plus caregiver companies owned by M2k of Chicago, 

LLC, will implement a sen ior program, as described herein, for designated Series of the Company 

and their tenants. 

MANAGEMENT 20l(b)(m) 

Management: 

The Issuer is operated by two managers, Ranul fo S. Vizcarra and Christy J. Jepson (Managers), who have 

managed the Issuer since its organization on July 14, 2014. The Managers a rc also the Managers of each 

designated series of the Issuer. At this time there arc three designated Series, Series A, Series B and Series 

C. Series Chas leased a property on a long- term lease in Palatine, Illinois, developed the property into a 

restaurant and bar and subleased the property to a restaurant operator. Pursuant to the terms of The Italian 

Cafe, LLC operating agreement, either manager is authorized to act w ithout the other, except no Manager may 

sale all or substantia lly all of the Assets of the Issuer, bind the Issuer to any lease, contract or other obligation 

in excess of$ 10,000.00, or cause the Issuer to sale any ofthc Membership interest ofthc Issuer, withou t the 

prior authorization of the majority of the Members of the Issuer. Both Mr. Vizcarra and Mr. Jepson have been 

and arc expected to continue to be involved in acquiring, leasing, bui lding and remodeling, negotiating with 

landlords, restaurant and bar operators, terminal operators and others on behalf of The Italian Cafe, LLC and 

its designated Series. 

(I) Ranulfo S. Vizcarra was educated and trained a!> a physician in the Philippines. Mr. Vizcarra is the 

trustee and one hundred percent beneficiary of the Ranulfo Trust, which owns a nineteen percent ( 19 %) 

membership interest in M2K of Chicago, LLC, previously known as M2K, LLC, an lllinois limited 

liab ility company, and Ranu lfo's daughter's trust, owns the other 81 %. M2K of Chicago, LLC 
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owns and operates a number of healthcare related companies and real estate properties, and ( I 00%) of 

M2K of Illinois, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company that operates residential real estate rental 

properties. M2K of Chicago, LLC also owns a fifty percent (50%) membership interest in the 

Italian Cafe, LLC and each of its des ignated Series. Mr. Vizcarra is the sole Manager of M2K of 

Chicago, LLC, and an officer, director or manager of all of the corporat ions or limited liabili ty 

companies which M2K of Chicago, LLC has an ownership interest in, including the Issuer. Mr. 

Vizcarra, for his own account, or as a shareholder, member, director or officer of the companies in 

which he serves, has negotiated the acquisition, financing and sale o f compan ies and the acquisition, 

sale, financing and leasing of real estate properties, such as office bui ldings, shopping centers and 

other retail, restaurants and bars, condominiums, apartments and s ingle- family homes. Mr. 

Vizcarra has managed and operated a number of companies and real estate properties. 

(2) Christy J. Jepson was educated at OePau l Univers ity in C hicago, Illin ois. After graduating and 

passing the Certified Pub lic Accounting exam, he graduated from the John Marshall Law School in 

Chicago, Illinois, and he is a licensed attorney practic ing law at the law fi rm of Strecker, Jepson & 

Associates in Lake Zurich, 111 ino is. Mr. Jepson is a manager of and owns an e leven percent ( I I%) 

interest in Sen ior Ilomcs, LLC, an Illino is limited liability company in the real estate development 

and construction business. Senior IIomes, LLC owns fifty percent (50%) of the membership interest 

of the Issuer and each of its designated series. Mr. Jepson has, as an attorney, as a shareholder, member, 

director or offi cer of companies or for his own account, negotiated the acquisition, financing and sale 

of companies and the acquisition, sale, fi nancing and leasing of real estate prope1tics, such as office 

buildings, shopping centers and other retail, hotels, restaurant and bars, casinos, condominiums, 

apartments, time share properties and sing le-family homes. Mr. Jepson has managed and operated a 

number of companies and real estate properties. 

(3) Mr. Vizcarra currently holds the fol lowing positions and employment: 
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Manager of the Italian Cafe, LLC, The Italian Cafe, LLC Ser ies A, The Italian Cafe, LLC Series B 

and the Italian Cafe, LLC Series C located at 21020 N. Rand Road, Su ite C-4, Lake Zurich, Illinois 

60047; Manager ofM2K of Chicago, LLC, an Illinois limited liabi lity company located at 

3501 Algonquin Road, Su ite 560, Rolling Meadows, Illinois 60008, in the business of acquiring, 

owning and operating healthcare companies, real estate and real estate companies; Manager of M2K 

of Illinois, LLC, an Illinois series limited liability company located at 350 I Algonquin Road, Suite 

560, Rolling Meadows, I Iii no is 60008, in the business of operating real estate rental properties; 

Manager of IICP Financial, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company located at 350 I A lgonq uin 

Road, Suite 560, Rolling Meadows, Illinois 60008, of which M2K of Chicago, LLC is a 70% 

member, in the business of providing management, admin istration, accounting and other services to 

healthcare related companies; Manager of Medical Gear, LLC d/b/a Healthcare Plus Sen ior Care, an 

I II inois limited liabi lity company located at 350 I Algonquin Road, Suite 560, Ro lling Meadows, Illinois 

60008, of which M2K of Chicago, LLC is a 70% member, in the business of providing caregiver 

services; President of I Icalthcare P lus Caregivers Corporation, an Illinois Corporation located at 

350 1Algonquin Road, Suite 560, Roll ing Meadows, Illinois 60008, of which M2K of Chicago, LLC 

is a 70% shareholder, in the business of provid ing caregiver services; Manager ofllcalthcarc Plus 

llomcmakcrs LLC, an Ill ino is limited liabi lity company located at 350 1 Algonquin Road, Suite 560, 

Rolling Meadows, Illinois 60008, of which M2K of Chicago, LLC is a member, in the business of 

providing caregiver services; Manager ofComforthome Private Care LLC, an Illinois limited liability 

company, located at 3501 Algonquin Road, Su ite 560, Roll ing Meadows, Ill inois 60008 , of which 

M2K of Chicago, LLC is a me mber, in the business of providing caregiver services; Manager of 

Healthcare Plus llospicc LLC, an Ill inois limited liability company located at 1272 W. Nm1hwcst 

I lighway, Palatine, Il linois 60067, of wh ich M2K o f Chicago, LLC is a 50% member in the business of 

providing hospice services; Manager of Chicago land I Iomeowners Association, LLC, an J11 inois 

limited liabi lity company located at 3501Algonquin Road, Suite 560, Rolling Meadows, Illinois 

60008, o f which M2K of Chicago, LLC is a 70% member, in the business of acquiring and operat ing 
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real estate properties; Manager of3949 North Pulaski LLC, an Illinois limited liability company 

located at 3501 Algonq uin Road, Suite 560, Rolling Meadows, Illinois 60008, of which M2K of 

Chicago, LLC is a 70% member, in the business of owning and operating the building at 3949 N. 

Pu laski, Chicago, Ill ino is 60641 . Manager of Eli te Healthcare Providers, LLC, located at an Illinois 

limited liabil ity company, located at 350 I Algonqu in Road, Suite 560, Rolling Meadows, Illinois 

60008, of which M2K of Chicago, LLC is a I 00% Member, in the business o f operating a licensed 

home health agency. 

( 4) Mr. Jepson is the owner and manager of Strecker, Jepson & Associates, a law firm located al 21020 

N. Rand Road, Suite C-2, Lake Zurich, Illinois 60047. Mr. Jepson is a Manager and provides financial 

and legal services to Senior llomes, LLC located at21020 N. Rand Road, Suite C-4, Lake Zurich, 

Illinois 60047 and /\ II A merica Reverse Mortgage, LLC located at 2 1020 N. Rand Road, Suite C-1 , 

Lake Zurich, Illinois 60047, of which Sen ior I Iomes is a I 00% Member. Mr. Jepson is the Pres ident of 

GCF, Inc., an Illinois corporation, the sole asset of which is a patent. Mr. Jepson is a Manager of the 

Issuer and each of its designated Series. 

20 I (c) Em ployccs: The Issuer c urrently has two Managers that each spend approximately forty hours 

per month working in th is business. It is antic ipated that few employees will be needed in itially to operate 

the Issuer, but as additional employees arc needed, they wi ll be added. 

CROWDSOURCEFUNDED INVESTMENT PROCESS 

Making <111 Investment in the Company 10 IO) 

How docs investing work? 

When you complete your investment on Crowdsource Funded, your money will be transferred to 

an escrow account where an independent escrow agent w ill watch over your investment until it is 

accepted by the Company. O nce the Com pany accepts your investment, and certain regu latory 
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procedures arc completed, your money wi ll be transferred from the escrow account to the Company in 

exchange for your Notes. /\t that po int, you wi ll be an investor in the Company. 

Crowdsource Funded Regulation CF rules regarding the investment process: Investors may cancel an 

investment commitment until 48 hours prior to the deadline identified in the issuer's offering materia ls. 

The intermediary will notify investors when the target offering amount has been met. 

If an iss uer reaches a target offeri ng amount and the closing amount prior to the deadline 

identified in its offering mate rials, it may close the offering early if it prov ides notice abo ut the new 

offering deadl ine at least five business days prior to such new offering deadline. 

20 I (k) If any material change (other than reaching the Targeted Offering Amount) occurs related to the 

offering prior to the Offer ing Deadline, the Issuer wi ll provide notice to purchasers and receive 

reconfirmations from purchasers who have already made commitments. If a purchaser docs not reconfirm 

his or her investment commitment after a material change is made to the terms of the offering, the purchaser's 

investment commitment wi ll be cance lled, and the committed fun ds will be returned w ithout interest or 

deductions. 

If an Issuer does not reach both the target offering amount and the clos ing offering amou nt 

prior to the deadline identified in its o ffering materia ls, no Notes will be sold in theoffering, 

investment commitments wi ll be ca ncelled and co mmitted funds w ill be returned , and 

If an investor does not cancel an investment commitment before the 48-ho ur period prior to the offeri ng 

deadline. the funds wil l be re leased to the issuer upon closing o f the offering and the investor will 

receive Notes in exchange for his or he r investment. 

What wi ll I need to complete my investment? 

To make an investment you w ill need the following information readily ava ilable: 
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• Personal information such as your current address and phone number; 

• Employment and employer information; 

• Net worth and income information; 

• Social Security Number or government issued identi fication: and 

• ABA bank routing number and checking account number 

How much can I invest? 

A Non-Accredited Investor is limited in the amount that he or she may invest in a Regulation Crowdfunding 

Offering during any 12-month period: 

I f either the annual income or the net worth of the investor is less than $ I 07.000, the investor is 

limited to the greater of$2, 140 or 5% of the greater of his or her annual income or net worth. 

If the annual income and net worth of the investor are both greater than $ I 07 ,000. the investor is 

I im ited to I 0% of the greater of his or her annual income or net worth. to a maximum of 

$ I 07,000. Separately the Company has set a minimum investment amount of Two Notes or $2,000. 

How Can I or the Com pany Cance l My Investment? 

For offerings made under Regulation Crowd funding, you may cancel your investment at any time 

up to 48 hours before a closing occurs or an earlier date set by the Company. You will be sent a reminder 

notification approx imately five days before the closing or set date givi ng you an opportuni ty to cancel 

your investment if you had not al ready done so. Once a closing occurs. and if you have not cancelled your 

investment. you w i ll receive an emai l not ifying you that your Notes have been issued. I fyou have al ready 

funded your investment. let Crowdsource Funded know by emailing Tim Hogan at 

tim@crowdsourcefunded.com. Please include your name the Company's name. the amount. the 

investment number if appl icable. and the date you made your investment. 

After My Investment, what is my ongoing re lationship w ith the Company? 
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You are an investor and Noteholder in the Company. Compan ies that have ra ised money via 

Regulation Crowdfunding must file information with the SEC and post it on their websi te on an ann ual basis. 

Receiving regu lar Company updates is important to keep investors educated and informed about the progress 

of the Company and their investments. Th is annual report includes information s im ilar to the Company's 

initial Form CIA tiling and key inform ation that a company will want to share with its investors to foster a 

dynamic and healthy re lationship. 

In certain c ircumstances the Company may terminate its ongoing repo11ing requirements if: 

The Company becomes a ful ly-reporting registrant with the SEC; 

The Company has filed at least one annual report. but has no more than 300 shareholders of record: 

The Company has fi led at least three annual reports, and has no more than $ 10 mill ion in assets; 

The Company or another party repurchases or purchases all the Notes sold in rel iance on Section 4(a)(6) 

ofthe 1933 Act: or 

The Company ceases to do busi ness. 

However, regard less of whether the Company has terminated its ongoing reporting requirements per 

SEC rules, Crowdsource Funded works with all companies on its platform to ensure that investors are 

provided quarterly updates. These quarterly reports wi ll include information such as: (i) quarterly net sales, (ii) 

quarterly change in cash and cash on hand, (iii) mater ial updates on the business. (iv) fundraising updates (any 

plans for next round. current round status, etc.). and (v) any notable press and news. 

How do I keep track of th is investment? 

The best way to keep track of your investment is by monitoring the progress and developments of the 

Company. In addition to annual reporting updates that the Company is required to fi le with the SEC, you may 

also receive periodic updates from the Company about its business. 

Can I sell my Notes after buyi ng them? 
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Notes purchased through a Regulation Crowdfund ing offering are not freely transferable for one year 

after the date of purchase. except in the case where they are transferred: 

• To the Company that sold the Notes: 

• To an accredited investor; 

• As part o f an offe ring registered with the SEC; or 

• To a member of the famil y of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust controll ed by the 

purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit ofa member of the fam ily of the purchaser, or in 

connection w ith the death o r divorce of the purchaser. 

Regardless. after the one-year holding period has expired. you should not plan on being able to readily 

transfer and/or sel I your Notes. Currently, there is no market or liquidity for these Notes and it may be some. if 

ever. time before the Company lists these Notes on an exchange or other secondary market. Until then you 

shou ld plan to ho ld your investment for a sig nificant period of time before a "liquidation event" occurs. A 

"liquidation event" is when the Company e ither lists its securit ies on an exchange. is acquired, or goes 

bankrupt. 
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The undersigned, being all of the Members ofThe Italian Cate, LLC, pursuant to the Operating Agl'eement, het·eby 
authorize the Managers to sale the securities described in this Form C in the manner described in this Form C to 
encumber the Company in the amounts and on the terms described in this Fo11n C, and to execute tl1 is Form C and 
any and all other documents required to accomplish the transactions described in this Form C. 

Members: 
M2k of Chicago, LLC 

Date: _ _ __ _ 1/31/_2_0_23 _____ 1:Jy: __ ~-----

Print: Ranulfo Vizcarra 

Its: Manager 

Senior Homes, LLC 

Date: 

Its: Manager 
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Pursuant to the requirements of Sections 4(a)(6) and 4A of the Securities Act of 1933 c1nd Regulation Crowdfunding 

(§ 227. I 00 et seq.), this Form C has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates 
indicated. 

The Italic111 Cafe, LLC 

Date: -------
1/31/2023 

By: ~ --

Print: Ranulfo Vizcarra 

I ts: Manager 

Date: / b, I _5?, 0 X J 
By( /.,t. ;t::--2zr==-·-·· 

• .? .. .. ...... -~ . ... - -~.,......./ • 

Its: Manager 

The Italian Cafe, LLC 

[3y Its Members; 

M2k of Chicago, LLC 

Date: ----- --1/31/2023 By:--~-----

Print: __ R_a_n_u_lf_o_V_iz_c_a_r_r_a_ 

Its: Manager 

Senior Homes, LLC 

Its: Manager 
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This document was prepared by: 
Christy J. Jepson 
Strecker, Jepson & Associates 
2 1020 N. Rand Road, Suite C-2 
Lake Zurich, Illinois 60047 
Telephone: (847) 7 19-3470 
Email: jcp33@ao l.com 
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Illinois 
Form LLC-5.5(S) Limited Liability Company Act 

Articles of Organization FILE if 04884388 

Secretary of State Jesse White 
Department of Business Services 
Limited Liabilily D!vision 
www.cyberdriveillinois.com 

Fifing Fee: 
Expedited Fee: 

Approved By: 

$750 

$100 
DJR 

FILED 

JUL 14 2014 

Jesse White 
Secretary of State 

I. Limited Liability Company Name: _T_H_E_I_T_A_U_A_N_C_A_F_E...,_,_L_LC ________ ____________ _ 

2. Address of Principal Place of Business where records of the company will be l(ept: 
21020 N. RAND ROAD, SUITE C-4 

DEER PARK. IL 60047 

3. Articles of Organization ettective on the filing date. 

4. Registered Agent's Name and Registered Office Address: 

CHRISTY J. JEPSON 

21020 N RAND RD STEC 
LAKE ZURICH, IL 60047-3006 

5. Purpose for whlch the Limited Liability Company is organized: 

LAKE 

"The transaction of any or all lawful business for which Umited Liability Companies rnay be organized under this Act." 

6. The LLC is to have perpetual existence. 

7. The limited Uability Company ts managed by the manager(s). 

VIZCARRA. RANULFO S. 
1090 GLENCRE:.:. f Ul-(!V t;;; 

BARRINGTON, IL 60010 

JEPSON, CHRISTY J. 
1127 l<ING ARTHUR COURT 

PALATINE. IL 60067 

8. Name and Address of Organizer 
I affirm, under penalties of perjury, having authority to sign hereto, that these Artic!es of Organization are to the best 
of my knowledge and belief, true, correcl and complete. 

Dated: JULY 14, 20·14 CHRISTY J. JEPSON 
21020 N. RAND ROAD. SUITE C-2 
DEER PARK, IL 60047 

The operating llgreement provides for the establishment or one or more series. Wlien t11e company l1as filed a Gerlillco.te or Designation fo r each 
series, which is to hmm limi!od liobilily pursunnt to Sed,on 37-40 of Iha Illinois Llmilod Unbilily Company Ac:L, Iha uel,ls, linbilhios and oblioatlnns 
lncurn,rl, conlror.!ed lor or olherv,lse oxisllng wlth respect 1o a particular scrios shulf bo onforcoablo ogulnst tho assets of such series only, and not 
ogolnst lho MSCl!l of tho Limited Unbilily Compnny generally or ony olhor series thoreof, and un!eso othorwlso provided in Ilic opcrnllng a greement, 
none ol the <lebt.s. l iabilities. obligations and expenses lnc:urred, contracted for or otherwise existing wllh rospecl to this company generally or any 
olher series lheieol r.hnlf be onforcooblo ugainst the osse ts ol such series. 

This document was generaied etoctronlcolfy ol \WJW,cyberdrlvolllinois.com 



LLC FILE DETAIL REPORT 

En tity Name 

Status 

Entity Type 

FIio Oato 

Agent Namo 

Agont Slreot 
Add ress 

Agent City 

Agent Zip 

I . 
I THE ITALIAN CAFE. LLC 
I. . . , . - . - .. - . ·-

1 ·ACTIVE -
I 

··· 1 LLC 
• ••• I. . • 

. . . . J o:~1_M20_14 ___ .. . 

-- fcH.RJsr//JEPSON 
' 21020 N RAND RD STEC 

, LAKE ZURICH 

. ··-' 

Filo Nurnber 

On 

Type of L LC 

Jurisdiction 

Agont Change. Date 

Principal Office 

Managomont Type 

Dura tion 

Annual Repor t FIiing 1 05/10/20 16 For Ye,ir 
Dato 

Serles Nome . : (001) ACTIVE - THE ll.ALIAN CAl'E. LLC SERIES A 
. : (002) ACTIVE - lHE ITALIAN CAFE, LLC SERIES B 
, (003) ACTIVE • THE ITALIAN CAFE. LLC SERIES C 

04084360 

05/10/2016 

Oomeslic 

IL 

07/1,112014 

21020 N. RAND ROAD, SUITE 
C·4 
DEER PAR!<. IL 600~70000 

MGR View 

PERPETUAL 

i , 2016 

Return lo the Search Screen [seiecl Certificate of Good Standing for Purchase 

(One Certificate per Transaction) 

BACK TO CYBERDRIVEILLINOIS.COM HOME PAGE 

http:/fw,..vw.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/Corp orateLlcContToller 5/1 5/2016 



cyberdriveillinois .com is now ilsos.gov 

Office of the Secretary of State Jesse White 

ilsos.gov 

Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing 

LLC File Detail Report 

File Number 

Entity Name 

Status 

04884388 

THE ITALIAN CAFE, LLC 

ACTI VE 

Entity Information 

Princ ipal Office 

21020 N. RAND ROAD, SUITE C-4 

DEER PARK, IL 600470000 

Entity Type 

LLC 

Type of LLC 

Domest ic 

Organization/Admiss ion Date 

Monday, 14 July 2014 

Jurisdict ion 

IL 

Durati on 
PERPETUAL 

Agent Information 



Name 

CHRISTY J. JEPSON 

Address 

21020 N RAND RD STEC 
LAKE ZURICH, IL 60047 

Change Date 
Monday, 14 July 2014 

Annual Report 

For Year 

2022 

Filing Date 

Thursday, 7 J uly 2022 

Managers 

Name 

Address 

VIZCARRA, RANULFO S. 
3501 ALGONQUIN RD. 

ROLLING MEADOWS., IL 60008 

Name 

Address 

JEPSON, CHRISTY J. 

21020 NRAND RD STE C2 

LAKE ZURICH, IL 600470000 

Series Name 

(001) ACTIVE 

THE ITALIAN CAFE, LLC SERI ES A 

(002) ACTIVE 

THE ITALIAN CAFE, LLC SERIES B 

(003) ACTIVE 

THE ITALIAN CAFE, LLC SERIES C 



LIJVUTED LIABILITY COMPANY OPERATING AGREEMENT 

OF 

THE ITALIAN CAFE, LLC 

AN ILLINOIS LIMITED LIABILITY COMJ'ANY 

THIS LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY OPERATING AGREEMENT of 

THE ITALIAN CAFE, LLC 

nn fll inois Limited Liability Company outhori2ed to form series ("the Company',), is entered into and shall be 
effective ns of July 14, 2014, by and among the Company and ench of the Members of the Company executing th is 
Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement ("Agreement"). 

For and in consideration of the mutual convenants herein contained and for other good and valuable 
consicleralion, the receipt and sufficiency of wbic.h is hereby acknowledged, the Members executing this 
Agreement, made pursuant to the Illinois Compiled StatuJes Annotated, Chapter 805. Bw;i11ess Organizations Law, 
cited as the Limited Liability Company Act; 805 JLCS Seclio11 18011-1 el seq., as amended from time to time (the 
"Law" or "Act") do hereby agree to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The Members hernby agree thnt 
each Member shall be entitled to rely on the provisions of this Agreement, and that no Member shall be liable to the 
Company or to any other Member or Members for any action or refusal to act taken in good faith reliance on the 
terms of this Agreement. The Members and the Company do hereby agree that the duties and obligations imposed 
on the Members of the Company as set forth in this Agreement, are intended to govern the relationship among the 
Company and the Members, notwithstanding any provision of any common, federal or state law or regulation to the 
contra!)'. Each Member agrees to be bound by all the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the formation 
certificates or Articles of Organization. This Operating Agreement shall be subject to the Limited Liabi lity 
Company Act. 

Ench Member aclrnowledgcs that the interests in the Company have not been registered under the 
Scc1!ritics Act of 1933 or the laws of Illinois governing tbc sale of securities, or the securities laws of any 
other state, because the Company is issuing interests in relinncc upon the exemption from the registration 
requirements of such laws providing for non-public offerings. The Company has relied upon 
representations of the Members thnt each is ncquil'ing the interest for inveshnent purposes ancl not resale or 
to distribute to others. Each Member has been fumished all information regarding the interests and 
wa1-rnnt nod represent tl.iat the Membe1· has the experience and sophistication as an investor adequate for 
evaluation of tbc merits and risks of investment in the Company. 



ARTICLE] 

Defiu11ions 
SECTiON 1.1. For purposes of this Operating Agreement, ond unless the context indicates otherwise, the word or 
words set forth below and in other provisions hereof within quotation marks shall be deemed to have the menning 
set forlJ1 below or ill such provision: 

A. "Additional Member" - a Member, other than the Initial Member, who has acquired a Membership 
Interest from the Company. 

l3. "Articles" - the formation documents and Certificates filed with the Secretary of State. 
C. "Assignee'' - the transferee or a Member's Mt:mbcrship Rights. 
D. "Admission Agreement" - the Agreement between an Additional Member ond the Company ns 

described in this AgreemenL 
E. "Bankrupt Member'' - a Member who has filed a petition commencing a voluntnry case under the 

Bankruptcy Code; a general assignment by a Member for the benefit of creditors; an admission in 
writing by a Member of his or her inability to pay his or her debts as they become due, the filing by a 
Member of any petition or answer in any proceeding seeking for himself or herself, or consenting to, or 
acquiescing in, any insolvency, receivership, composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution, or 
similar relief under any present or future stntuto, law, or regulation, or the filing by n Member of an 
nnswcr or other pleading admitting or failing to deny, or to contest, the material allegations of the 
petition lilcd ugainsl him or her in any such proceeding; the seeking or consenting to I or acquiescence 
by a Member in , tl1e appoimment of any trustee, receiver or liqu idator of him or her, or any part of his 
or her case under the Bankruptcy Code, or a proceeding under any receiversh ip, composition, 
rcndjustment, liquidation, insolvency, dissolution, or like law or stntute, wh ich case or proceeding is 
not dismissed or vacated within 60 dnys. 

F. "Certificate" - tJ1c Articles of Organization as properly adopted nnd amended from time to time by lhe 
Members and other documents filed with the Secrotnry of State. 

G. "Dissolution" - those events of dissolution set forth herein and (I) In the case of a Member who is 
acting as a Member by virtue of being a trustee of a trust, the termination of the trust {out not merely 
the substitution of a new trustee); (2) in the case of a Member that is a partnership, the dissolution and 
commencement of winding up of the partnership; (3) in the case of a Member that is a corporation, the 
filing of a Certificate of Dissolution, or its equivalent, for the corporotion or its equivalent, for the 
limited liability Company, or the involuntary dissolution by 11 non-appea liible order of a colirl:; or (4) in 
the case of an estate, the distribution by the fiduciary of the estate's entire Membership Interest. 

H. " Initial Members" - those persons identified on Schedule A attached hereto and made a part hereof by 
this reference who have executed this Agreement. 

I. "Member" - each of the persons signatory hereto either by signing this Agreement or ngreeing to be 
obligated by the terms of tl1is Agreement and ony other person or persons who mny subsequently be 
designated ns a Member of this Company pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

J. "Membership Interest" - tl1e share of profits and losses, gains, deductions, credits. cash. assets. nnd 
01.her dis1ribulions (liquidations and otherwise) and allocations of a Member or, in the case of ;rn 
Assignee, the rights of the assigning Member. 

K. "Membership Rights" - the rights of n Member which are comprised of a Member's (I) Membersh ip 
Interest, and may or may not be comprised of n Member's right to (2) vote and (3) participate in the 
management of the Company, if so specified herein. 

L. "Notice" - Notice shall be in writing ns set forth herein. 
M. "Person" - an individual, bus iness entity, business trust, estate, trust, nssociation, joint venture, 

government, governmental subdivision or agency or any other legn l or commercial entity. 
N. "Resignation'' - the decision or determination of a Member to no longer continue as a Member. 
0. "Retirement" - the withdrawal of n Member or Manager from the Compnny upon such times and 

events as nre provided in this Agreement which will permit withdrawal of a Member without violnting 
or breaching the terms of the Agreement. 
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ARTICLE II 

Organization of the Company 

!:>ECTION 2. l. BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY. 
The Company may engage in any lawful business for which limited liability companies mny be organized 

in the State of lllinois, or the laws of any jurisdiction in which the Company may do business. The Company shall 
hove the authority and powe r to do nll things necessary or convenient to accomplish its purpose and opemte the 
business as desc.ribed herein. The terms of this Agreement and the laws of the State of Il linois shall govern the 
operation of this Company. An additional purpose of this LLC is to invest in, build out, lease ond operate, 
restaurants, bars and video gaming mnchincs. 

This LLC mny establish and designate one or more series pursuant to Article 37 of the Act (ench n 
"Series"). The name of each Series shall begin with "The Italian Cafe, LLC Series" and then contain a letter of the 
alphobet in sequentinl order for each paiticu lar Series beginning with the letter "A". 

Pursuant to A11icle 3 7 of the Act, the debts, liabilities and obligations incurred, contracted for, or otherwise 
existing with respect to a particular series shall be enforceable against the assets of such series only, and not against 
the assets of the Limited Liabil ity Company general ly or any other series thereof. Un less otherwise provided in this 
Operating Agreement or the Operating Agreement of such series, none of the debts, liabilities, obligations and 
expenses incurred, contracted for or otherwise existing witl1 respect to this Limited Liability Company generally or 
any other st~rics thereof shnl I be enforceable against the assets of such series. 

for each new 0eries designated, tJ1e Company shall file a Certificate of Designation with the 1 llinois 
Secretary of Stnte. Each Series shall maintain distinct books and records separate from the Compnny or any other 
Series. The assets of ench Series shall be held and nccounted for separately from the assets of !he Company or any 
oth er Series. 

Ench Series shall have its own rights, powers, duties, members, managers, opernting ngrccmcnt, assets, 
I iabilities nnd capital. It is anticipated that odditional Series shall be created in the future. 

SECTION 2.2. COMPANY NAME 
The Company name shall be as set forth above. The Members shall be Members in the Company and shn ll 

continue to do business under the name, as permitted by law, until the name of the Company or the Company sha ll 
terminate. 

SECTION 2 .3. PRINCIPAL OFFICE. 
The principal office of the Company shall be located in the state of Illinois at 2 1020 N. Rand Road, Suite 

C-4, Deer Park, Illinois 6004 7 or such other place or places as the Managers may determine. The Managers will 
give notice to the Members promptly nfler ony change in the location of the principal office of the Company. 

SECTION 2.4. REGISTERED AGENT FOR SERV[CE OF PROCESS. 
There must be at least one registered agent for the service of process for the Company and the registered 

office shal l be that Person and location set fortl1 in the Articles or Certificate as filed in the office of the Secretary 
or State. The Members or Managers, mny, from time to time, change the registered ngent or office lllrough 
appropriate fil ings wi th U1e Secretary of Stnte. In the event the registered ngcnt ceases to act 11s such for ;my renson 
or rile registered office shall change, the Members or Managers shall prompt ly designate a replacement registered 
agent or fi le n notice of change of address as the case may be. If the Members shall foil to designate a replacement 
registered agent or change of address of the registered office, nny Member or Manager may designate a 
replncement registered ngem or file a notice of change of address. 

SECTION 2.5. DURATION. 
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The Compnny is formed as of the date when the Articles become effective and will continue to exist in 
perpetuity or until such time as set forth in the Articles. The Company shall dissolve and irs affairs should be 
wound up in accordance with the Act and this Agreement, except that the Company rnay terminate prior to such 
date as provided in lhis Agreement. 

SECTION 2 .6. T AX STATUS. 

l11e Company shall be treated as partnership for tedern.l and Illinois tax purposes unless classified 
otherwise for federal income tax purposes. If so otherwise classified for federa.1 tax purposes, the Company shall be 
classified in tl1e same manner for Illinois tax purposes. Capital nccounts of the Company shall be maintained in 
accordance and consistent with the United Stutes Internal Revenue Code § 704 and the regulntions thereunder, as 
0011:ncled from time to time. 

SECTION 2.7. FISCAL YEAR. 
The fiscal nnd tnx year for the Company shall be the calendar year ending on December 31 of each year. 

ARTJCLE ill 

SECTION 3.1. NUMBER OF MEMBERS. 
There shall be at least one Member 

SECTION 3.2. ORIGINAL MEMBERS. 

Members 

The original Members of the Company shall be !'hose persons who have signed this Agreement: and ~re 
admitted os a Member of tl1e Company upon the luter occurrence of either (n) the formation of the Company or (b) 
the time provided in and upon compliance with the Articles or this written Agreement. If neither so provides, then 
(c) n person is admitted as a Member when their admission is reflected in the records of the Company. 

SECTION 3.3. ADDITIONAL MEMBERS. 
Subsequent to fonnation, a person acquiring an interest directly from the Compnny is admitted ns a 

Member (an "Additional Member") at the time pmvided in and upon compliance with the Articles Emd nny written 
agreement. If neither shou ld so provide, then such Additional Member is admitted upon the consent of all 
Members and when the person's admission is reflected in the records of tho Company. Any additional Members 
shall be reflected on Schedule A, at which time they shall become Members of record . 

St:C HON 3A. MEETINGS OF MEMBERS. 
All meetings of the Members shall be held at such place within or wil.hout lhe State of Illinois as sha ll be 

designated from time to time by the Members or Managers and stated in the notice of the meeting. 

SECTION 3.5. ANNUAL MEETING. 
The onnual meeting of the Members shnll be held on the first Monday in the month of March in euch year 

beginning with the yenr in which the Company was organized, at the hour of I I o'clock in the A.M., for the 
purpose of electing M11nagers ond if necessary, Officers, and for the transaction of other business ns may come 
before the meeting. If the day fixed for such meeting is n legal holiday in the State of Illinois, such meeting shall be 
held on the next succeeding business <lay. If such election shall not be held on the doy designated herein for uny 
annual meeting, or at any adjournment thereof, the Members shall cause the election to be held at a special meeting 
or Mcm bers as soon therc,tfter os such meeting rn ay be convenient. 
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SECTION 3.6.SPECIAL MEETING. 
A special meeting to conduct tJ1e business of the Company may be called at any time by any Manager of 

the Company upon at least two (2) days' notice. Upon at least two (2) days ' notice, a special meeting may be 
called by tvventy-five (25) percent of the Members of the Company, or by any Members owning at least twenty-five 
(25) percent of the Members' interest in the Company. 

SECTION 3.7. NOTICE OF MEETIN,G. 
Written or electronic notice stating the date, time and place of the meeting and, in the case of a 

special meeting, purpose for which the meeting is called, shall be delivered not less than two (2) days prior to the 
meeting ifcommunicnted personally or five (5) days ifcommun[cated by mail, nor more than sixty (60) days before 
the dote of the meeting. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered w hen deposited in the Unit States 
mail with postage prepaid, addressed to the Member at lhe address appearing on the records of lhe Company. 

SECTION 3.8. WATVER OF MEETING. 
Written waiver of notice of the meeting, signed by the Member entitled to the notice or attendance al the 

meeting waives any objection to the lack of notice or defective notice, unless attendance nt the meeting was sole ly 
for the purpose of objecting to tl1e meeting. 

SECTION 3.9. QUORUM. 
Except as otherwise provided by law1 the Articles of Organization or this Agreement, the holders of a 

majority of the interests issues, outstanding and entitled to vote thereafter, present in person or represented by 
proxy, shnll constitute a guorurn nt all meetings of the Members for the transaction of business. If, however, such 
quorum shnll not be present or represented at any meeting of tile Members, the Members entitled to vote present in 
person or represented by proxy, shall have the power to adjourn the meeting, until a quorum shall be present or 
represented. Such adjourned meeting at which a quorum shall be present or represented, shall constitute the meeting 
as originally notified. 

SECTION 3.10. VOTE. 
When a quorum is present at any meeting, the vote of the holders of a majority of the interests having 

voting power present, in person or represented by proxy, shall decide any question brought before such meeting, 
unless the question is one upon which by express provision of the Act, law or the Articles of Organization, a 
different vote is required in which case such express provision shall govern and control the decision of such 
question. 

SECTION 3.11. MEMBER'S VOTING RJGHTS. 
Unless stated otherwise by law, the Articles or this Agreement, each Member shall be entitled to one vote 

weighted in proportion to the Member's respective per capita interest in the Company as reflected in Schedule A 
hereto, as amended from time to time. For purposes of this Agreement, the term "majority of the Members" shall 
mean the majority of the ownership interest percentage of the Company ns determined by the rec-0rds of the 
Company on the date of the action. 

SECTION 3.12. MEMBERS ONLY POWERS. 
Notwithstanding any other provisions contained in the Articles or this Agreement, only a majority of tile 

Members may authorize the managers to bind the Company in the following actions: 
The sale ofnll or substantially all of the assets of the Company, binding the Company to any lease, 
contract or other obligation in excess of$ I 0,000, or the sa le of nny Membership interest by the 
Company. 

SECTION 3.l3 . MEMBER WITHDRAWAL. 
Each Member shall be entitled to withdraw by giving at least six months prior written notice to the other 

Members of the Company at their respective addresses as shown on the Company's books and records. Such 
w ithdrawal shall not relieve the Member of any obligations to the Company. 
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SECTION 3.14. EVENTS OF WITHDRAWAL. 
A person shall cease to be a Member of the Company upon the occurrence of any of the following events: 

(a) such person withdraws; 
(b) such persoi1 resigns; 
(c) such person becomes a Bankrupt Member; 
(d) such person dies; 
(e) such person is adjudicated incompetent to manage his or her person or property; 
(f) such person is a trustee and the trust is terminated (not merely the substitution of a new 

trustee); or 
(g) sucli person is an estate, Company, partnership or other lim ited liability company that is 

dissolved or wound up. 

SECTION 3.15. EXPULSION OF A MEMBER. 
A member may be expelled by unanimous vote of U1c other members under Section 35-45 of the Limited 

Liability Company Lnw. 

ARTICLE IV 

Mnnngcment of the Company 

SECTION 4.1. MANAGEMENT. 
The business and affairs of the Company shall be managed by or under the direction of the 

Members pursuant to the authority granted by the law of Illinois. The Members have elected to manage the 
Company as follows: 

The Members hereby delegate the management of the Company to Managers and referred to as 
appointed "Munuger(s)," subject to provisions and limitations contained in the Articles or this 
Agreement. The Managers shaJI be selected as provided herein. 

ARTICLE V 

Managers 

SECTION 5.1. APPOINTED MANAGERS. 
This Agreement provides for management by appointed Managers. Such persons shall have the 

right and authority to manage the business and affairs of the Company subject to limitations placed in the 
Articles or by written Agreement. Unless otherwise provided, such persons shall be designated, 
appointed, elected, removed or replaced by the approval of the majority vote of the Members. Christy .J. 
Jepson and Ranulfo S. Vizcarra are hereby appointed managers to serve until the next election of 
Managers by the Members. If more thm1 one manager is appointed, either Manager is auU1orizcd to act 
without the other, unless othe1wise designated by the Members. No manager shall take any action 
described in Section 3 .12 without first obtaining authorization from the majority of the Members. 

SECTION 5.2. QUALIFICATION OF MANAGERS. 
Managers need not be Members of the Compnny or natural persons. A Manager who is both a Member and 

a Munager has the rights nnd powers of both a Member and a Manager, subject to nny restrictions nnd limitations 
placed in tile Articles or this written Agreement. 

SECTION 5.3 . INFORMATION TO MEMBERS. 
The Managers shall provide reports at least annually to the Members at such time and in such nwnuer as the 

Managers may determine reasonable. The Managers shall provide all Members w ith those information returns 
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required by the Internal Revenue Code and the laws of the State of Illinois or any other state having jurisdiction 
over this Company. 

SECTION 5.4. NUMBER OF MANAGERS. 
The number of Managers of the Company shall be set by the Members. 

SECTION 5.5. TERrvI OF MANAGERS. 
Ench Manager shall hold office until: 

(a) the next annual meeting of Members or until his/her successrn· shall have been elected' and 
qualified; 

(b) the resignation of such Manager from the Company; 
(c) removal of such Manager by the Members of the Company in the manner set forth in this 

Agreement. 

SECTION 5.6. DUTY OF MANAGER. 
A Manager of the Company shall perform his/her duties as a Manager, including his/her duties as a 

member of any Committee upon which he/she may serve, in good faith and that are necessary and conven ient to 
carry out the business and affairs of the Company, in a manner he/she reasonably believes to be in the best interests 
of the Company, and with such care as nn ordinarily prudent person in a like position would use under similar 
circumstances. In performing his/her dutiesT a Manager shall be entitled to rely on information, opinions, reports, 
or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, in each case prepared or presented by persons 
and groups listed in paragraphs (n.), (b), and (c) of this Section. But he/she shall not be considered to be acting in 
good faith if he/she has knowledge concerning the matter in question that would cause such reliance to be 
unwarranted. A person wl10 so perlbrms his/her duties shall not have any liability by reason of being or having 
been a Manager of the Company. Those persons and groups whose information, opinions, reports and statements a 
Manager is entitled to rely upon arc: 

(a) One or more em ployees or other agents of the Company whom the Manager reosonnbly 
believes to be reliable and competent in the matters presented; 

(b) Counsel, public accountants, or other persons us to matters which the Manager reasonably 
believes to be within such persons' professional or expert competence; and 

(c) A Committee appointed by the Managers upon which he/she does not serve, duly designated 
in accordance with the provision of this Agreement, as to matters within its designated 
authority, which Committee the Mnnager rcosonably believes to merit confidence. 

SECTION 5.7. RESIGNATION OF MANAGER. 
Any Manager may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Company. The resignation of such 

manager sllal l take effect upon the receipt thereof or at such later time as shall be specified in such notice; and, 
unless otheiwise specified therein, the acceptance, of such resigniltion shall not be necessary to make it effective. 
When one or more Managers shall resign, effective at a future date, a majority of the Managers then in office, 
inoluding those who have so resigned, shall have power to fi ll such vacancy or vacancies, the vote thereon to take 
effect when such res ignation or resignations shall become effective. 

SECTION 5.8. REMOVAL OF MANAGER. 
Any manager rnay be removed from office at any time with or without cause by a vote of Members then 

entitled to vote at an election of Managers. 

SECTION 5.9. VACANCY IN MANAGER. 
Any vacancy occurring in the Manngers may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the 

remaining Managers entitled to vote U1ough less than a quorum of the Managers. A Manager elected to fill a 
vacancy shall be elected for the unexpired term of his/her predecessor in office. Any Manager pos ition to be filled 
by reoson of an increase in the number of Managers may be filled by election by the Managers for a term of office 
continuing only until the next election of Managers by the Members. 
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SECTION 5.10. AUTHORITY OF MANAGERS. 
All other Managers, if any, sha ll have such authority and shall perform such duties us may be specified 

from time to time by the Members . 

SECTION 5.11. COMMITIEE OF MANAGERS. 
The Managers may designate two or more managers to constitute a Committee(s) ("Committee"), any of 

which shall have such authority in the management of the Company as the Managers shall so designate. 

SECTlON 5.12. LUAN~. 
No Joans shall be contracted on behalf of the Company and no evidence of indebtedness shall be issued in 

its name unless authorized by a resolution of the Managers. Such authority may be genernl or confined to specific 

instances. 

SECTlON 5.13. CONTRACTS. 
A. No contrnct or transaction between the Company and one or more of its Managers, or between the 
Company and any other Limited Liability Company, partnership, association, or other organization in which one or 
more of its Managers are Managers, or have a financial interest, shall be void or voidable solely for this reason, or 
solely because the Manager is present at or participates in the meeting of the Mnnngers, or Committee thereof 
wh ich authorizes the contrnct or trnnsaction, or solely because their votes are counted for such purpose, if: 

1. the material facts ns his/her relationship or interest and as to the contract or transaction are 
disclosed or are known to the Managers or the Committee, and the Manager or Committee in good faith authorizes 
the contract or transact.ion by the affirmative votes of a majority of the disinterested Managers, even though the 
disinterested Managers be less than a quorum; or 

2. the material facts as to his/her relationsh ip, interest and as to the contract or transaction are 
disclosed or are known to the Members entitled to vote thereon, and tile contract or transaction is specifically 
approved in good faith by vote of the Membersi or 

3. the contract or transaction is fair for the Company as of the time it is authorized, approved or 
ratified, by the Managers, a Committee thereof, or the Members. 
B. Common or interested Managers may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a meeting of the 
Managers or a Committee which autl1orizes the cont.met or transaction. 

SECTION 5.14. MANAGERS MEETlNGS. 
The Mo.nngers of the Compa11y may hold meeting~, both regular and special, either within or without the 

Stnte of Illinois. 

SECTION 5. I 5. ANNUAL MEETING OF MANAGERS. 
Annual 01eetings of newly elected Manager{s) shall be held after the meeting of Members, and notice of 

such meeting shall not be necessary to the newly elected Managers in order to hold n valid meeting, so long as a 
quorum shnll be present. ln the event of the foilure of the Members to fix the time or place of such first meeting of 
the newly el~cled Mnnugers, or in the event such meeting is not held at the time und place so fix.ed by the Members, 
Lhe meeting may be held at such time and place as shall be specified in a notice given as provided for in this 
Agreement, Ot' as shall be specified in a written waiver signed by all of the Managers. 

SECTfON 5.16. MANAGERS MEETINGS. 
Regular meetings of the Managers may be held within or without the state of Illinois with at least two (2) 

days' notice of any such meeting given by the Manager or Members calling the meeting, unless it is a regulnrly 
scheduled meeting. Such meeting shall be held with either written or in-person notice, unless oral notice is 
reasonable under the circumstances. Written notice shall be sufficient when given by telephone, telegraph, teletype 
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or other form of wireless communication. or by mail or private carrier. If such forms of written notice are 
impracticable, notice may be communicated by 11 newspaper of general circulation in the area where published or 
by radio, television, or other form of broadcast communication. 

SECTION 5.17. QUORUM AND VOTE AT MANAGERS MEETfNGS. 
At all mee6ngs of the Managers, a majority of the Managers shnll constitute a quorum for the transaction of 

busilless. However, in order for a Manager to vote, such Manager must also be a Member of the Company. If a 
quorum shall not be prcscnl at any meeting of the Managers, the Managers present thereafter may adjourn the 
meeting from time co tim<.::, without notice other than announcement ut the meeting, until a quorum shall be present. 
Each Manager shu ll have one vote, unless otherwise provided in this Agreement. 

SECTION 5.18. DELEGATION OF MANAGER DUTIES. 
Tile Members may from time to time delegate the powers or duties of any Manager of the Company, in the 

event of his absence or failure to act otherwise, to any other Manager or Member or Person whom they may selecl. 

SECTION 5.19. COMPENSATlON or MANAGER. 
The compensation of each manager shall be such ns the Members may from time to time determine. The 

Mnn.igers may be pajd d1ci.r expenses, if any, of attend,rnce at each meeting of the Managers and mny be paid a 
fixed sum for nttendancc nt each meeting of lhe Manage,r:s or a stated salary as Manager. No such payment sha ll 
preclude any Monager from serving the Company in any other capacity and receiving compensation there from. 
Members of special or stn11ding Committees may be allowed like compensation for attending Committee meetings. 

ARTICLE VI 

Officers 

SECTJON 6.l. OFFICERS AND RELATED PROVIS lONS. 
In the event the Members elect to manage the Compnny directly without appointing a manager, the 

Members shall elect and appoint officers for the Company who shall act in the name of the under the direction And 
rnnnogemcnt of the Members pursuant to this written Agreement. In the event that the Managers shnll elect nnd 
appoint officers. The officers of the Company shall include a President, one or more Vice Presidents (the number 

shall be determined by die Members or Managers), a Secretnry and n Treasurer, each of whom shall be elected and 
oppoinled by the Members or Managers. Any two or more oflices of the Company may be held by lhe snme 
person. 

SECTION 6.2. ELECTION AND TERM OF OFFJCE. 
The officers of the Company shall be elected by n majority vote of the Members or Managers annually al 

tile first meeting of the Members or as soon thereafter as is convenient, or by the Manngors, as the case may be 
under this Agreement. Each officer shall hold office until his successor shall have been duly elected and shall have 
qualified or until his death or resignation or removal in the manner hereinafter provided. Such appointment to a 
position as officer of t11e Company does not, in and of itself, create contract rights on the part of the officer of the 
Company. 

SECTION 6.3. REMOVAL OF OFFICERS. 
Any officer or agent appointed by the Members may be removed by the Members whenever, in their 

ju<lgmcnf;, t ht: best in terest o f the Com puny would be served thereby, but such removal shall be withoul the contract 
rights, if any, of the person or entity so removed. Any officer or agent appointed by Managers may be removed by 
the Managers. 

SECTION 6.4. V ACANClES. 
In die event of any vacancy in any office because of dentJ1, resignation, removal, disqualification or 

othi;rwisc may be fi lled by the Members or Miuiagcrs for the unexpired po1tion of the term and unlil the successor 
shal l have been chosen and qualified. 



SECTION 6.5. THE PRESIDENT. 
The President shall be the principal executive officer of the Company and, subject to the control of the 

Members or Manager, shall in general supervise and control all the business and affairs of the Company. He shall 
preside at all meetings of the Members or Managers. He may sign, with the Secretaty or any other proper officer of 
the Company thereunto authorized by the Members or Managers, any deed, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or other 
instruments which the Members or Managers have authorized to be executed, except in cases where the execution 
thereof shall be expressly de legated by the Members or by this written Agreement to some other officer or a.gent of 
the Company, or shnll be required by law to be otherwise signed or executed; and in general shall perform all duties 
incident to the office of President and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Members or Managers from 

time to time. 

SECTION 6.6. THE VICE PRESIDENT. 
r n the absence of the President or in the event of his death, inability or refusal to act, the Vice President ( or 

in the event there by more thao one vice president, tho vice presidents in the order designnted at the time of their 
election) shall perform the duties of the President. When so acting, such vice president shall have all the powers of 
and be subject to nny and all restrictions placed upon the President. Any Vice President shall perform such other 
duties as from time to time may be assigned by the President or by U1e Members or Managers. 

SECTION 6.7. THE SECRETARY. 
The Secretary shall: (a) keep the minutes of the Members' and Managers' meetings in one or more books 

provided for that purpose; (b) see that all notices are fully given in accordance with the provisions of this 
Agreement or as required by law; (c) be a custodian of the records of the Company; (d) keep a register of Lhe post 
office address of each Member which shall be furnished to the Secretary by each Member; (e) certify the Members' 
resolutions and other documents of the Company ns true and correct; and (t) in general perform all duties incident 
to the office of the Secretary and s uch other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the President or by the:: 
Members or Mnnagcrs, as the case moy be. 

SECTION 6.8. THE TREASURER. 
The Treasurer shall be the chief financial officer of the Company and shall have charge ancl custody of and 

be responsible for all funds and securities of the Company and shall keep regular books of all receipts and 
disbursements of the Company, and in general shall perform such other duties us may be assigned to him by the 
President or by the Members or Managel's. The Trensurer shall disburse out of the funds of the Company payment 
of such just demands against lhe Company as may from time to time be authorized by the Members or Managers. 
The Treasurer shall sign or countersign all checks, notes and such other instruments or obligations as require his 
signature, and shall perfonn all duties incident to his office, or that are properly required of him by the President or 
Members or Managers, provided however, that by resolution of authority and responsibility for the signing of 
check, notes, and other obligations may be assigned to either Ute Pres ident or Treasurer or other such officer or 
officers as the Members or Managers m ay designate from time to time. 

SECTION 6.9. COMPENSATION. 
The salaries of the principal officers shall be fixed from time to time by the Members or Managers. No 

officer shall be prevented from receiving his salary by reason of the fact that he is also a Member or Manager of the 
Company. 

SECTION 6.10. INDEtvfNIFICATION OF MEMBERS, MANAGERS AND OFFICERS, AGENTS AND 
EMPLOYEES. 

A Member, Manager, or Officer, agent, employee or former Member, Manager, Officer or other person 
acting on behalf of the Company ("the Indemnified Party") shall have no liability to the Company or to any other 
Member, Manager, or Officer for this or her good faith reliance on the provision of this Agreement including, 
without any limitation, provisions that relate to the scope of duties, including the fiducinry duties, of Members, 
Mnnagers, and Officers. Subject to such s tandards and resh'ictions as set forth in Articles and this Agreement, rhe 
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Company shall indenmify any and all its Members, Managers, Officers, or any persons, or such persons testate or 
intestate, who may have served at its request, or by its election or by its appointment as a Member, Manager, or 
Officer, agninst expenses, including attorney' s fees, actually nnd necessarily incurred by them in connection with 
the defense or settlement of any action, suit, or proceeding in which they, or any of them, are made parties, or a 
party, by reason of being or having been Members, Managers, or Officers of the Company, except in relation to 
matters as to which any such Member, Manager, or Officer, either cun-ent or former, or personal sba11 be adjudged 
in such action, suit or proceeding to be liable for willful misconduct in the perfommnce of duty and to such matters 
as shall be settled by agreement predicated on the existence of suc11 Jiabi]jty as set fo1th ti1erein, and may advance 
such expenses, all in accord with the law of Illinois. The indemnification provided hereby sbaU not be deemed 
exclusive under any agreement or otberv.•jse, as both to action in hls official capacity and as to action in another 
capacity while holding such office. The Company may purchase and maintain insurance ou behalf of any Member, 
Manager, Officer againsl any liability asserted against and incurred by them to the extent the Company would have 
the power to indemnify lhern against such liability under the provision of this Agreement and the law of 11linois. 
Notwithstanding a written agreement to the contrary, no Member shaIJ be personally liable to the Company or any 
other Member for drumiges of any breach of duty in such capacity, provided I.hat such liability shall not be limited if 
a judgement or other finaJ adjudication adverse to such Member establjsbes that his acts or omissions were in bad 
faith or involved inteutional misconduct or a knowing violation of law or that he personally gained, in fact, a 
financial profit or other advantage to which be was nol legally entitled or that Ws acts violated Illinois law 
regarding indemnification, or i~ for any act which is an intentfonal violation of criminal law. 

ARTICLE VU 

Cnpital 

SECTION 7 .1 . CAP IT AL CONTRIBUTIONS. 
The Members have contributed to the Company in exchange for their membership interest the cas11, 

services and other property as set forth in Schedule A, annexed hereto. 

SECTION 7 .2. VALUE OF CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS. 
Tbe fair market value and the adjusted basis of the contributing Member of any property, other than cash, 

contributed to the Company by a Member shall be set forth on Schedule A, annexed hereto. 

SECTION 7.3. ADDITIONAL CAPITAL CONTIUBUTl ON!:>. 
Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, no Member shall be required to make any additional 

contributions to the capital of the Company. 

SECTION 7.4. NO INTEREST. 
No interest shall be paid on the Capital Account of any Member. 

SECTION 7.5. CAPITAL ACCOUNTS. 
An individual capital account shall be established and maintained for each Member of the Company 

{"Capital Account"). The Cap ital Account. of each Member shall consist of his or her original capital contribution, 
increased by (a) additional capital contributions made by him or her, and (b) his or her share of the Company's 
gains and profits, and decreased by (i) distributions of such profits and capital to him or her, and (H) his or her share 
of Company losses. 

SECTION 7 .6. OBLIGATION OF MEMBER. 
Each Member is obligated to the Company to pcrfonn any promise contained in this Agreement to 

contribute cash or property or perform services, even if be or she is unable lo perform because of death, disability, 
or any other reason. The obJigabon of a Member to malce a contribution to the Company may be compromised 
only by a written consent signed by all the Members of the Company. Each Member hns agreed to contribute 
$500.00 of capital to the Company upon execution of this Operating Agreement and M2K1 LLC has agreed to 
contribute $150,000.00 to tJ1e Company as additional capital by Janumy 14, 2015. M2K, LLC has agreed to loan 
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$85,000.00 to the Company with interest at 10% per annum with aJJ principal and interest to be paid from the 
Company to M2K, LLC on January 14, 2015 from the $150,000.00 of additional capital paid into the Company by 
M2K, LLC on that date. 

SECTION 7.7. NO wrTIIDRAWALOF CAPITALCONTRIBU'l'lUN. 
No Member shall llave the right to withdraw or be repaid any cash or property contributed to tbe Company 

and as set forth on Schedule A atlacbed hereto, except as provided in tJus Agreement. 

SECTION 7.8. ADDITIONAL MEMBER CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION. 
Each Additional Member shall make the Contribution and shall perfom1 the Commitment described in the 

Admission A1:,treemeut entered into between the Additional Member and the Company and which sliall adjust 
Schedule A hereto in accordance with the tem1s of such Admission Agreement. 

ARTICLEVIJI 

Distributions to Mcml>crs 

SECTION 8.l . DISTRIBUTION TO MEMBERS. 
The Company shall make distributions Lo the Members of tbe Company, from time to time, except that no 

distribution may be made if, after sucl1 distribution, the Company would not be able to pay its debts as they become 
due in the usual course of business, or the Company's nssets would be less tban the sum of its total liabilities 
(except liabilities to Members)1 unless otherwise stated ju the Articles. For purposes of tl.J.is Agreement, 
distributions shall be allocated among U1e Members in proportion to each Member's membership interest in the 
Company as disclosed on Exhibit A, without regard to the number of days during such lllOnth i.u which the person 
was a Member. 

SECTION 8.2. DlSTRIBUTIONS ON DJSPOSITION OF ASSETS. 
In addition to tbe distribuHons pursuant to SecHon 8.1 of this Agreement, upon any sale, transfer, or other 

disposit ion of nny capital asset of the Company (hereirrnfter referred to as "Disposition"), the proceeds of such 
Disposition shall first be applied to the payment or repayment of a.ny sel ling or other expenses incurred in 
connection with the Disposition and to the payment of any indebtedness secured by U1e asset subject to the 
Disposition immediately prior thereto. All proceeds remaining thereafter (the "Net Proceeds") shall be retnined by 
the Company or to be distribuled, at such time or times as shall be detennined by the Managers, to the Members in 
propo1tion to their respective percentages of MembersWp Interest; provided however that for purposes of Sections 
702 and 704 of the hliemal Revenue Code of 1986, or the corresponding provisions of any future federa l internal 
revenue law, or any similur 1.nx law of any st.ate or jurisdiction, that each Member's distributive share of nil items of 
iucome, gain, lo:ss, deduclion, crerut, or al1owance in respect of any such Disposition shall be made and based upon 
such Member's b11sis in such capit.ul asset. 

SECTION 8.3. DISTRIBUTION TO RESIGNED MEMBER. 
Upon rcsignnlion of a Member, a resigning Member shall be entitled to receive only the distributions to 

which he or she is entitled under this Agreement. 

SECTION 8.4. DISTRIBUTION Th1' KIND. 
A Member, regardless of the nature of bis or her contribution, bas no right to demand and receive any 

distribution from the Company in any form other than cash. However, a Member shall be required and compelled 
to accept the distribution of lu1y asset in kind from the Company, as determined from Orne to time by the Managers, 
in accordance with this Agreement, whether the percentage of the asset distribution to him or 11er exceeds the 
percentage of tliat asset which is equal to that Member's Membership Interest in the Company. 

AlrflCLEfX 
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Profits and Losses 

SECTION 9.1. PROFlT AND LOSS DEFINED. 
The "Net Profits and Net Losses" of the Company shall be the net profits and net losses of the Company as 

determined for Federal income tax purposes. 

SECTION 9.2. DISTRIBUTION OF PROFITS AND LOSSES. 
The Net Profits and Net Losses of the Company and each item of income, gain, loss, deduction or credit 

entering into the computation thereof, shall he allocated to the Members in the same proportions that they share i11 
distribution:; us set forth in this Agreement. A Member shall not be compelled to accept a distribution of any asset 
in kind to the extent that the percentage of the asset distributed to the Member exceeds the Members Percentage. 

SECTION 9.3. MEMBER'S DISTRIBUTIVE SHAlUi. 
For purposes of Sections 702 and 704 of the Internal Revenue Code of I 986, or U1e corresponding 

provisions of any fi.iture federal internal revenue law, or any similar tax law of this state or jurisdiction, the 
determination of each Member's distributive share of all items of income, gain, loss, deduction, credit or r:illowance 
of the Company for any period or yenr, shall be made in accordance with, and in proportion to, such Member's 
percenlage of the total Membership Interest of all Members os it rno.y then exist. The Net Profits and Net Losses of 
the Company and each item of income gain/Joss deduction or credit entering into the computation tliereof, shall be 
nllocated to the Members in the same proportions that they share in distributions pursuant to Section 6.1. 

SECTION 9.4. MEMBER'S OBLIGATION TO RETURN DISTRlBUTION. 
A. If, at nny time, a Member receives in distribution the return of any part of his contribution 

without violation of law, the Articles of Organization of this Company or this Agreement, such Member is liable to 
this Compnny for a period of one (1) year after receipt of such contribution, for the amount of such returned 
contribution, but only to the extent necessury to discharge the Company 's liabilities to creditors who extended 
cred it to the Company during tl1e period the contribution wns held by the Company. 

B. In the event that a return of any part of a Member,s contribution is made in violation of the 
Jnw, the Articles of Incorporation of this Company, such Member is liable to th is Company for a period of six (6) 
years after the receipt of such contribution, for the amount wrongfully relurned. 

ARTICLEX 

Admission an<l \Vithdrnwnl of a Member; Trnnsfor of Membc1·'s Interest 

SECTION 10. l. SALE OF MEMBER'S INTEREST, AND RJGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL. 
A Member who wishes to sell his Member's Interest in the Company in whole or in part (the "selling 

Member") shall: 

(I) give written notice to the Company of his intent and give first offer of his interest to the 
Company. The Company shall then have the option to purchase the interest at the price ("Set Price',), if any, as 
provided in the Articles or this Agreernent, and if none is so provided at the price requested by the selling Member, 
which price shall not exceed any bonafidc price offered to the selling Member by any bonafide third party. Such 
decision by the majority of remaining Members or Managers (not to include the selling Member or Manager), of 
the Company will be communicated in writing to the sell ing Member within thirty (3) days from receipt of th is 
Member's written notice of request to sell. If the Company's decision is to purchase the interest, the purchase price 
will be paid in cosh and the closing will take place within ninety (90) days of the notification to the selling Member. 

(2) If the Company decides not to purchase the offered selling Member's Interest in whole or in part, then 
the other Members shall have the option of purchasing the offered Member 's Interest at the Set Price, if any, on a 
pro rnta basis based upon the remaining Member's percentage ownership interest in the Company. Should a 
Member choose not to purchase his proportional share of the offered interest, the other Members shall have the 
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option of purchasing this share on a pro rata basis. After written notice from the selling Member, Members shall 
hnve thirty (30) days to provide notice to the selling Member of their intention to purchase. The purchase price will 
be paid in cash and closing will take place within ninety (90) days of notice to the selling Member or upon such 
terms agreed by the Company and selling Member. 

(3) If neither (I) or (2) or applicable, the selling Member may sell his share interest to a non-member. 
A non-member purchaser of a Member's Company interest cannot exercise any rights or receive any benefits of a 
Member unless a majority of the other Members consent to his becoming an Additiona l Member upon such terms 
as are set forth in an Admission A greement. However, a non-rtiember purchaser of a selling Member's (nterest will 
be entitled to share, to the extent of such selling Member's percentage interest, in any distribution, allocation or 
profits, losses, deductions, allocation credits or any similar item in the percentage to which the selling Member 
Interest sold to him would hnve been entitled. A non-member purchaser, by his purchase, agrees to be subject to all 
the terms of the Articles and this Agreement as if he were a Member, including any calls for capital contribution. 

SECTION I 0.2. ASSIGNMENT OF MEMBER'S INTEREST. 
A Member may assign llis Company interest, in whole or in part, only upon the unanimous npproval of the 

Members. Such an assignment entitles the Assignee to share in the profits and losses nnd to receive distributions to 
which the assignor was entitled, to the extent of the interest assigned. Such an approved assignment does not 
dissolve the Company or entitle the Assignee to become a Member or to exercise rights of a Member in the 
Company until he may be admitted as a Member. A Member who assigns his entire interest ceases to be a Member 
or to have the power to exercise any rights of a Member once all the Assignees become Additional Members, 
subject to the other Member's right to remove the assignor Member earlier pursuant to this Agreement. A pledge 
of, grant of security in, lien against, or other encumbrance in or against any or all of a Member's Company interest 
is not an ossignment of this interest and shall neither cause the Member to cease to be a Member nor to cease to 
have the power lo exercise any rights or powers of 11 Member. 

SECTION 10.3. COSTS OF SALE, ASSIGNMENT, ETC. OF MEMBER'S INTEREST. 
All costs and expenses incurred by the Company in connection with the transactions set forth in th is 

Section or any similar transaction(s) concerning a Member's Interest, including any costs for disbursement, 
publishing, counsel fees, shall be pnid or assessed against such Member's Interest. 

SECTION I 0.4. ADDITIONAL MEMBERS. 
The Members may admit Additional Members and determine the Capital Contribu tions of such Members 

as set forth in this Agreement and the Admission Agreement to be entered into between the Additional Member and 
the Company; provided, however, if the Admission Agreement or this Agreement so provides, thnt each Member 
consents in writing to the addition of such Additional Member. 

SECTION I 0.5. AGREEMENT BINDING ON ALL MEMBERS. 
Each person who becomes a Member or Additional Member in the Company, shall and does hereby ratify 

and agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE XI 

Merger ·with Other Entities 

SECTlON l l . l. MERGER. 
Upon a majority vote of the Members and pursuant to any provisions in the Articles or this Agreement, t!1e 

Company may enter into a lawful merger with or into one or more business entities. Such merger sha ll take pince 
pursuant to a written plan of merger, agreed upon by the Members, setting forth the constituent business entity 
planning to merge and the name of the surviving business entity resulting from such merger, the tenns and 
conditions of the merger and the nrnnner and basis upon which the Members' interests will be converted. 
Subsequent to approval of such agreement, this merger plan may be abandoned upon the majority consent of the 
Members. 
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ARTICLE XII 

Dissociation, Dissolution, Winding Up & Termination 

SECTION 12.1. DTSSOC1ATION. 
Notwithstanding contrary provisions in the Articles or this written Agreement, a Member's interest in the 

Company shnll cease upon the occurrence of one or more the following events: (a) a Member submits a notice of 
withdrawal to the Company thirty (30) days prior to the withdrawal date~ (b) a Meinbe1· assigns his entire interest in 
the Company to a third party~ (c) a Member's entire interest in the Company is purchased or redeemed by the 
Company; (d) a Member is Bankrupt; (c) upon the adjudication of the Member as incompetent to manage his or her 
person or affairs; or (f) upon the death of a Member. Dissociation of a Member does not entitle the Member to 
receive the fair value of his Company interest. A dissociated Member who retains an interest in the Company shall 
be entitled to continue to receive profits, losses, distributions, and allocations of income, gain, loss, deduction, 
credit or similar items to which he would have been entitled if still a Member. For any and all other purposes, 
including voting, a dissociated Member shall no longer be considered a Member and shall not be entitled to any 
rights or benefits of a Member. 

SECTION 12.2. DISSOLUTION. 
The Company shall be terminated prior to the date of expiration of the term if a term is set in the Articles, 

according to the law, or it; 
A. Each Member consents in writing thot the Company should be terminated and dissolved; or 
B. The Company is dissolved pursuant to this Agreement. 

SECTION 12.3. TEKM!NATIUN. 
The Company shall be terminated: 

A. When the Company has less than one mcmberi or 
B. If uny Member 

I. Dies, withdraws, resigns, or expelled from the Company, or upon the occurrence of uny other event 
which terminates the continued membership of a Member in the Company; 

2. Becomes Bankrupt; or 
3. A judgment is entered by o court of competent jurisdiction adjudicating him incompetent to manage his 

person or his property; 
C. Unless, if there is at least one remaining Mernber, the business of the Company may be cont inued either (I) 

with the unanimous written consent of the remaining Members within ninety (90) days after the event causing 
termination of the Company, so long as such termination is not due to a judicial decree of dissolution, or (2) if 
under a right of the Company to continue as stated in the Company's Articles or this Agreement. 

SECTION 12.4. LIQUIDATION AND WlNDrNG UP. 
Upon the termination and dissolution of the Company, a Person shall be elected to perform such liquido.tion 

by the written consent of the majority of the Members. Such Person shall apply and distribute the proceeds of such 
liquidation as fo!lows: 

A. If any assets of the Company are to be distributed in kind, such assets shall be distributed on the basis 
of the fair market value thereof, which shall be determined by an independent appraiser to be selected 
by the Company's independent public accountnnts. The amount by which the fair market value of any 
property to be distributed in kind to the Members exceeds or is less than the basis of such property, 
shall, to the extent not otherwise recognized by the Company, be tal<en into account in computing Net 
Profits or Net Losses (and shall be allocated among the Members in accordance with this Agreement) 
for purposes of crediting or charging the Capital Accounts of, and liquidating distributions to, the 
Members. 

B. All distributions upon liquidntion of the Company shall first be distributed to creditors, including 
Members who are creditors, to the extent perrnitted by law in satisfaction of liabilities of the Company, 
whether by payment or establishment of reserves; then to each Member, in proportion to lhe amounts 
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of their respective positive Capitol Accounts, as such accounts have been adjusted in accordance with 
th is Agreement (i) to reflect the Net Profit or Net Loss realized or incurred upon the sale of the 
Company's property or assets~ (ii) to reflect all Net Profits or Net Losses with respect to the year of 
liquidation. No Member shaJJ be liable to repay the negative amount of his Capital Account. 

SECTION 12.5. LIQUIDATION STATEMENT TO MEMBERS. 
Each of the Members shall be furnished with a statement, reviewed by the Company's accountants, which 

shall set forth tJie assets and liabilities of the Company as of the date of the Company's liquidation. Upon 
completion of the liquidation, the Company shall execute and cause to be filed dissolution Certificates and any and 
all other documents necessary with respect to termination of the Company with the appropriate officin!s of the State 
of Illinois. 

SECTION 12.6. JUDICIAL AND ADMINISTRATfVEDISSOLUTlON. 
Upon good cause shown, a Member or Members holding at least Fifty One (51) percent of the Member's 

Interest in the Company may apply lo the court for judicial dissolution of the Company. 

SECTION 12.7. REVOCATION OF DISSOLUTION. 
The Company may revoke its Dissolution at any time prior to the expiration of J 20 days following the 

effective dnte of filing dissolution documents with the appropriate State office. Revocation of Dissolution shall be 
authorized when each Member consents in writing to such action being taken by the Company. Such revocation of 
Di.ssolution becomes effective as of the date of the Company's dissolution being revoked and the Company shall 
resume carrying on its business as if dissolution i1ever occutTed. 

ARTICLE XIIJ 

Dooks and Reports 

SECTfON 13 .1. BOOKS AND RECORDS; INSPECTION. 
Accurate and complete books of account shall be kept by the Managers and entries promptly made therein, 

of all of the transactions of the Company, and such books of account slml l be maintained at the principal office of 
the Company and shall be open at all times to the inspection and examination ofthe Managers and Members ot'tl1e 
Company. The books shall be kept on the basis of accounting selected by the accounta11t regularly servicing the 
Company, and the fiscal year of the Company shall be the calendar year. A compifation, review, or audit of the 
Company, as shall be determined by the Managers in accordance witl1 this Agreement, shall be made as of the 
closing of each fiscal year of the Company by the accountants who shall then be engaged by the Company. 

SECTION 13.2. INSPECTION BY MEMBERS. 
The Company shall maintain the books of account, and the following records at the principal office of the 

Company, subject to inspection and copying during ordinary business hours at the reasonable request and expense 
of any Member upon such Member's written request: 

A. a current list of the full name and last known business and/or residential address of each Member, 
foimer Member and other holder of a member interest; 

B. a copy of the Articles and all Certificates nnd amendments thereto of the Company, together with any 
executed powei·s of attorney pursuant to which tmy certificate was executed; 

C. a copy of this Agreement, Admission Agreements and uny amendments thereto; 
D. a copy of the Company's federal, state and local income tax returns for the three most recent fiscal 

years; 

E. the Company's financial statements for the three most recent fisca l years; 
F. a writing setting forth: 

I. the amount of cash nnd/or property along with relevant statements ns to the agreed value of the 
property nnd/or services contributed or agreed to be contributed by each Member; 

2. any agreed upon time or event causing the Members to make additional contributions to the 
Company; 
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J. any agreed upon events, other than those stated in this Agreement, the happening of which will 
cause the Company to be dissolved. 

G. copies of records that would enable a member to detennine the relative voting rights, if any, of the 
Members; and 

H. such other information as may be specified in this Agreement, an Admission Agreement or otherwise 
agreed by all the Members or Managers from time to time. 

ARTICLE XIV 
Miscellm1cous 

SECTION I 5.1. NOTICES. 
Any notice or other communication under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be considered given 

when mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, to the parties at the following addresses (or a l 
such other address as a party shall have previously specified by notice to the others as the address to which notice 
shall be given to him): 

A. If to the Company, to it or in care of any one or all the Managers at the address of the Company. 
B. Ifto nny one or all of the Managers, to them at the address of the Company. 
C. If to any Member, to him at his address set forth on the books and records of the Company. 

SECTION 15.2. WAIVEK OF NOTICE. 
Whenever a notice is required to be given under the provisions of the Act, the Articles or this Agreement, a 

waiver thereof in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to said notice, whether before or after the time 
stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent thereto. 

SECTION 15.3. COMPLETE AGREEMENT. 
This Agreement and exhibits attached hereto and thereto set forth all (and are intended by all parties hereto 

to be an integration of all) of the promises, agreements, conditions, understandings, warranties and representations 
among lhe parties hereto with respect to the Company, and there are no promises, agreements, conditions, 
understandings, warranties, or representations, oral or written, express or implied, among them other than as set 
forth herein of all of the arrangements among the parties with respect to the Company and cannot be changed or 
terminated orally or in any manner other than by a written agreement executed by all of the Members. There are no 
representations, agreements, arrangements or understandings, ora[ or written, between or among the parties relating 
to the subject rnatter of this Agreement which are not fully expressed in this Agreement. 

SECTION 15.4. CONSTRUCTION OF THIS AGREEMENT. 
Th is Agreement shall be construed without regard to any presumption or other rule requiring construction 

against the party causing this Agreement to be drafted. 

SECTION 15.5. EFFECT OF INVALIDITY. 
Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as requiring the commission of any act contrary to 

law. lo the event there is any conflict between any provision of this Agreement and any statute, law, ordinance, or 
regLJlation contrary to which the Members or. the Company have no legal right to contract, the latter sha ll prevail. 
In such event, the provisions of this Agreement thus affected shall be curtailed nnd limited only to the extent 
necessary to conform with said requirement of lnw. In the event that nny part, article, section, parngrnph, or clause 
of this Agreement shall be held to be indefinite, invalid, or otherwise unenforceable, the entire Agreement shall not 
fail on account thereof, and the balance of the Agreement shall continue in full force nnd effect. 

SECTION 15.6. BINDING EFFECT. 
This Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of al[ parties hereto, their personal and legal 

representatives guardians, successors, and assignors to the extent, but only to the extent, that assignm ent is provided 
for in accordance with, and permitted by, the provisions of this Agreement. 
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SECTION 15.7. GOVERNING LAW. 
Irrespective of the place of execution or performance, this Agreement shall be governed by and consirucd 

in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois applicable to agreements made and to be performed in the State 
of Illinois. 

SECTION 15.8. CAPTIONS, ETC. 
The captions and table of contents in this Agreement are solely for convenience of reference and shall not 

affect its interpretation. The headings herein are inserted only as a matter of convenience and reference, and in no 
way define or describe the scope of the Agreement or the intent of uny provisions thereof. 

SECTION 15.9. GENDER NEUTRAL. 
Throughout this Agreement, where such meru1ings would be appropriate (a) the masculine gender shall be 

deemed to include the feminine and the neuter, and vice versa, and (b) singular shall be deemed to include plural, 
and vice versa. 

SECTION 15 .10. TAX MAlT.I:m .. :::i. 
The Members may make any tax elections for tl1e Company allowed under the Internal Revenue Code or 

the ta'< laws of the State of Illinois, or other jurisdiction having taxing jurisdiction over the Company. 

SECTION 15 .11. EXECUTION. 
This Agreement may be executed in nny number of counterparts, each of which shall be an original but all 

of which shall be deemed to constitute a single document. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, have executed this Agreement effective as of the day and year first 
above written. 

Senior Hornes, LLC 

, ··•'') ' 

By: /J·)u·,~.· ;;f"" _f-!} zykl•Vkl,1el<"JI 
1 Mannt.J / (_J 

M2K, LLC 

'

~ , A1tt' ~---· 
.By: - --ff:f\'--'---~--~ll, _______ _ M•F 
The Ttalian C~afe, ~~C 

By: C~ ~=== 
Mann -
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SCHEDULE A 

UST OF MEMBERS CAPJTAL CONTRIBUTIONS, NAMES AND ADDRESSES: 

Name and Address 

Senior Homes, LLC 
21020 N. Rand Road 
Suite C-4 
Deer Park, Illinois 60047 

M2K, LLC 
l 090 Glencrest Drive 

Barrington, IJ lino is 60010 

Total 

Capital And Other Contributions Percentage Interest 

$500.00 plus the agreements with 50% 
the pizza operators to sublease from 
the Company, the agreements with 
the tenuinal operator to provide gaming 
machines to the Company's sublessees, 
lease and sublease negotiations, development 
and constmction. 

$500.00 upon execution of 50% 
this operating agreement and 
contribution of additional Capital 
on January 14, 2015 in the amount 
of $150,000.00. Loan of $85,000.00 
to the Company to be repaid with 
interest at the rate of 10% per annum 
on January 14, 2015 from the 
additional capital received by the 
Company on that date. 

100% 
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ACTION BY THE MEMBERS OF 
THE IT ALV-\.N CAFE~ I..f ,C 

We, the undersigned, being a1J of 'the Members of ll1e ftalian Cafe. LLC. an Illinois Limi ted 

Liability Company, do hereby take the following action, pursuant to the outi10rity of the Illinois Lfrnikd 

Li,1bilit"/ Comp:\Tly Act .and The Ttaliari Oife., LLC Op,:!rating Agieement, ~ fullo~-s: 

ll1e Ilalinn C,afe, LLC (Company) Operating Agiwnem is herel:iy ap-provc:d and :::xecutcd by its Mernbcrs 

on J Ltly l •!, 20! 4. The Op;-rating Agreement ap[X.)mlS and the Memh.:1s do heieby nominRte e.nd e!ect Ranulfo S. 

Vizcaira and Christy J. Jepson as Managers to o~~ 1he Company. TI1e Members ra1ify the miliiaf,,e1s execution 

und filing of the Articles of Organization oftbc Comµmy \vith tl:e filmui.s S:xrctary of Slate to form the Company 

as 1u"1 Illinois Li:mitai Uability CornJJ011Y autho[i7.r..-'<l to establish scrie:1. 11r:; Mcmocm hereby approve the fom1 of 

the Articles of Orgai lizafon and aulhorrLe lhe ~:n.a=,oem to designate the first thn.'e sc:r:ic.s of the Company, Smes I\, 

Series Band Series C. by fili11g llie designations with the Illinois Secretary of State. 

Ihe Comp:my hereby 111..lf.horizes the M.sn .. "'lgcrs to m:quirc S Cafe, LLC. Opon execution of ti lca-c 

b.;£\'.-cen The lraHan C1.fe, LLC s~.-ies C, as 'terum~ and Eurofi~sh t)la;;.,-:1, LLC. as lPJ1dloro, for the rest.1urant 

property !ocal.e<l ot 154 \V. Northv.'est !-Iighv.iay in Palatine, Illicois 60067 ru:el. a Sublease for fuc sarne prop:rty 

bet,~en ·n1e Italian Cafe, LLC Series C £S Subl.and!ord and Luigi's Food & Pi.'Z7.a, LLC Series C as Subtc11a11~ the 

Managers rue aulhori.:zcd to accept :i note beadng ruimial interest of ten percent (10%) fiom Luigi's Fcxxl & Pina, 

~ Luigj's food & Piv_a, LLC Series C and Vrnce Peclan~, a mrn-:.ager and 1oon1J.:rofbo-:h Lizj c.omjXtnlts, 

and lo lom1 Luigi1s th~, fi:111ds 11eccs!11ry to n:modet Rnd open the rcstaunmt in a 1r..anm:3· and on ttrrn:s acrepabic to 

the M~_11agei""S in an rurt0unt nott') ~e&"d $100,COO.OO. The M2112gei~ are also suthori:red to advanre timrls Kl The 

ltali2n Cafe, LLC Seties C at ten p:rcent ( \ 0%) annna! intrJest. in t111 mnouol UlrJ. ciOl:S not exceed $1 OO,CC-0.00 to 

~, up ~u1d provide improvements to the restaurant 

Tiie Mansgers are authorized (o r.<lvuncc fw·:d:; 1:1! an a.rmoal i11tti ~trate of ten 1:--.crcent ( J 0
1
K} to Th-: lto.hafl 

EXIDBlT e, _ -



Cafe, LLC Series A and The Italian Care, LLC Series B i.n an amount that doc.c; 110t exceed $25 ;000 eocb to locnte, 

!:egoifa:e ar.d arguire n lease on restttnclfit pmpcrties to lx or~ne<l by those Series. 

111e Mernlx:rs hereby authorize the Managers to bon\JW furr.b Gum the Members ot the ann1.1al interest 

ro.te oflcrl pc.--rcent (l 0%) per mm urn as needed by the Compa.1y to the e.\'L"nt avai!ab!e from lhi; I,l.1e..'11re.rs. 

No fltrU1cr matters being brought befo1e the Memher-:. :'l di.cy,11.c-....:iion oftl1eg.er.eral bti£in~ af.fui.r.:;of 

the Company W"5 h;:id :md lhc m~tir.g \l\'aS adjourned 

July 14,2.014. 

tvt2K,LLC: 

~\/\J-:_:_ 
By: _----1f----- ---=-'---~--=----

Senior Homes, Ll.C: 

Dcing all onhe Mcmber.s ot'The Italian Cafe, LLC. 



ACTION BY THE Ivf.A.NAGERS Of 
THE IT ALLAN CAFE, LLC 

We, the 1111dcrsig.11l:'d, b:;;i.ng nil of the ?v1auagcr~ of Tll<! Italian Cafe, LLC, an flli!1ois Limited 

Liability Compuny, Jn hereby toke the fo!Jo,ving ac.tion, pu1su~nt lo the nutlirnily ufU !t illinoi<.. Li.mild 

Li~bility Company Aci anc! ·111~ 1 !.alian C:lfe. U.C Operating Agreemcn~ as fotlow:s: 

We he1eby waive aU 1~uhements for nolice of this mceiing ofivfon.-igers. 

The ilalion Cite, LLC (Company) O~rnting Agn~emr:nr wa-s UfJjJlt>\IL'i.i and e.xew!ed by i;~ Mer~1be•-rs on 

July 14, 201 4. ·1 he OjX."'lclting Agreement appoints m,d the M.:mb::rn ha,.-e efoct Ranulfo S. Vb..c....nn and Clui5ty J. 

Jepson a~ Manag.cts to cp.:rn1c the Comp,u1y and t:xe<..1.1te arid:file tl1.: Articles of OrgcU1ization ofU1t: Company witl1 

the IllinJis Secroary otS1.rre to f01m the Company a;, nn Illinois Lim.itcd Liability Ccm_[n]1y autJ1orizi.>.d 10 ~trbljsl 1 

series. '.!1;c Memb~rs hnve approved the fonn of the /utides of 0.-gnni.z.ation crid mrlhoriz-:<l Uie ?vl'aiugers to 

<ies-ignaLc tlic fii:'il thrc:e ~ric-.s cf rl1c Company, Scries A, S:Jies B r.ntl Scties C, l.>y filing th~-d~ij.,'llnaons v,nh lh~ 

llli.nois S\'..'\:retary ofSta~c 

'llie Members have authorized the tvlm!age..rs to acquire S Cafe, LLC. Up:m execution of a .lease tx:!we.:n 

The iWian Cafu. LLC Seri~ C, as tcriont, and Eurofresh Plaza, LLC, ~ hmcllon:l, for the resl.i:tmwit property !cu1led 

8 1511 W. Nortlw.e31 Higbv.£1y in P.Jlat:nc., lliinois 60067 mYl a Sublm'iC for clie: sarne prop::.rty bclv,'!:eil 'lb:: !taiian 

Cue, LLC Serie$ C us Subl,u1dlo1d m1d Luigi's Food & Piu~ Ll.£ Stri~ C us Sub1C.11ill1I, t11;; Members t:!!we 

m11.borizi..'d L'1e Mc.1Mgeis lO aro..1Jl a note bearing annual intere~t of ten peicent ( l 00/u) fium Luigj 's FC-Od & PiZ?.a, 

LLC. Luigi's Foot! & PiZlH, LLC Selies C and Vmce Pedone, a mru1Eger and member ofb~tli Luigi companies, 

unct t0 10:111 1.uigi 's th:: fi u 1( b. r 1tt..:~s.-;;11 y l() r~, node] 1112d opc:n 1hc reslau:rr.n: in a nio.mier und <,11 17.:::irns nco.:p!ubk Ir.> 

Lhe Managers in an amorn1t not to exceed $1CXWOO.OO. ·nre Member:; also auU-:ori.z.ed the Manage,~ to a.dV'ruir.e 

funds to ·fhe. 1mliao C1,1fu, LLC S2rics C at ten pcrce11t (HJ·%) annual inte.i~ t in ,t11 amount that dre.r; not e.xct:cd 

$ l OOJJU0.00 lo equip raid pro\~dc improvemt.!11S to the 1t~uranl We i:i.::ivc: B.greed il':i ~{am:ig~rs lo take.: ull ~,1ch 

;:ictioni; s.o autim1ized on !xhal fof tl1e Comr.x-my 



]he Membe.rs have authoriz.ecl the Managers to advance funds at an armuaI int.ere.st true of ten p."lt'C!it 

( 10%) to 'I11e llalia) Cafe, LLC Se1ieS A and 'TI1e I ta Han {~1.re, LLC Serief,; B in nn amount tl1at does not cxa!(~! 

S125,0CK1 each to !ocme, nego'Jate arnl acq,tire a lease on reslnurnnt p,upcrties to b::: o~ened by tl:osc Seiies. 1l1e 

The Mernbem have au1l 1orized fu~ Manage~ 10 bonuw·fi.mds fian the MembeJs a1 ibe annual inte1Et rate 

of ten 1:ercenl (10%) per anmuTl a<: n~ed by the Company lo the extent available fiom the Memb::.is. ·nie 

No forther mnners being brought before ll1e Managers, a cLisCLL~-,ion ofthe gerwsal h, 1,frpss }ti.fairs of 

the Ccmp:tny was had and the meeting Wro ndjnumed 

JLtly 14,2014. 

--...----·--... _,. .. _...- .. 
R.:111,!lfo S. V.izcorra, Manager 

Being nil of the lVIanngcrs of The Italian Cafe, LLC. 



ACTION BY n -IE iV.!EivIDERS or 
THE IT Jil..L4N CAFE.. LLC 

w~, (he undersigned, being al! of the Meml~rs of The Italfan C},fe, LLC, ?.n Jlhnois Limited 

Liability Company (Company), do hereby take the follO\ving action at its annual :meeting, 

purswmr to the autl1mity of the Illinois Limited Liability Company Acl nml 11ie lialiau Cafe. LLC Opt>,uting 

Ag,rr.cmem, ns follOv\'S: 

We hereby v,>a.ive .aU rcquiren.1e11ti for notice of tli.is meeting ofMernb~rs. 

We he1\!by ra!:ify a11d approve all of the actions lakcn by the Managers and !he Members oftl1e Company 

s-ince its 1brmation. 

We hereby nrnninate and ele~t as the Managers of'tl1e Comp:my ~ lo ac[ as such Manar,.em until their 

suco::5-...~rs shall have 1:ec! 1 duly elected and qunlified, the following: 

Christy J _ Jepson 

RmuLfo S. Vizcam1 

·n1e Financial Statements, financial condition cmd Um tax: retwllli of1l1e Compn.ny wen"..rHscu:-;:;i::d 

nnd npproved by the l\·k:mbers, and the rvianagers are hereby at:thoriz.ed to iile Ll1e Company iederal 1md 

l>'Ulle ii:eome tax re tu.ms for 2014. 

No iunhcr mailers being brought before the Members, a di5ct!$ior1 ofU1e general business affai1s of 

tl1e Compt111y,,.;'6S Ill.id.me! lrie n'!eeting was adjoume<l 

Mmch2,2015 

M2K,i,LC: 

Senior Homes, LLf'.: 

') . , ) 
- . . ! , . 

By ])1(1_-'fJ'uJ.:. ,,'p_!}u~.:w.Jwf··· I / J la/It.Cl .9,£A_,,) 

. /,.. . -, .. ' J 
Being all J!ttv.?. Men;v6ers of l he ltah an Cme, .LC. 



ACTION BY Tiffi I'-'1ANAGERS OF 
THE ITA1 .. W .-J CAFE, LLC 

We, the tmdersignecl being all of th!:! 1v1anager.; of 'll1e Italian Cate, LLC, an T1linois Limited 

Liability Company (Company), do hereby h:ike the following action ai ;ts amll!al meeting, 

prn:n.JrJlt io tile aLr'J1ority of the illmois Limited Liabi~ty Company Act and 111c Italian Cafe, LLC Opei-ating 

,\gn:tme:nt, t'\S follcnN~,: 

We Jiel'eby 'Acive all reqL1in::-111euts for ouli<X oflhis meeting ofManngers. 

We hereby rai.161 al! i>...cl:iont; of either Maruigcr acting on lx:hair offrie Company smce the fon11mion of 1hc 

Company. 

Th:.: Mcn-1ocrs have clccled Ranulfo S. Vizca1a arid Christy .I. Jepson rt.s Managers to co,1tinue lo operacr; 

the Company. 

We have n':\~ewed the Company firu:t!iclal sla!ements, linrn:cfoJ condilioJJ and tax returns wifh tbt'; 

Meml~;:rs and th::- [v:iemh::rs have authrni:zttl ihe Managers to file the 2014 federal and stale t;x rctcrns. "The 

No further matters being brought before the Managers, a discus.,;ion ofihe general bush1e:...s affairs of 

!.ht Company .1rm had ru-:d trieme.::;,ing -;-,,11s adjoumro. 

Iv1aL\:h 2,2015. 

_ ·-····-----fftJJtH-f/---
Ranu1 to S . Vizca~ra, Mana9 e r 

Bt:ing at! of die Man<1gers of The Italian Cafe. LLC. 



ACTION BY THENIEM:BERS OF 
THE lTALlAN CAFE, LLC 

We, the tmdernigned, being all of tl1e Members of Tim Italian Cafoi LLC, an lllinois Limited 

Liability Company (Company). do hereby take the following action at !ts annual mctting~ 

p11rs1.1~1r1t t.n the ,mthn:riJy of the- lliinois Lim.ired Linbility Company Act ~nd 1l1c 1t.alian Cafo, LLC Oper?.ting 

Agreerrn:n!, as fol!ow-:s; 

We hereby 1.:vrfrve all requirements for no ace of this.n1a:'ting ofMembe.;s. 

We hc1eby ratify and approve all oft.he actions taken by fJ1e Mmiagem since the li1St annl.1'::.! meehng. 

i}l,:~ hereby nominate ;:md elect a.<; the tvfanagt:rs of the Compa!1Y., to act as sud 1 tvfanagers un6J their 

St1ca.:s.i;;ors shall have lxen duly elected. and qualified, 01c foUov.~ne,: 

Christy .1 . Jepson 

Ranu1fo S. Vizcaiw. 

'TI F'' . I S' fu . l 1· ' cl ' · ~tl C · . 1e ·rna11c1;, ::,iatcmc.nts, . 1ru1cw cone tllon an the lnx returns or ~c ~ompauy wet·c chscusscd 

und ~~µproved by the Members and the lVfanagers arc hereby au!l1orize:d lo me tb.e Company federnl and state 

income tax l'<~tt.uns for 20 l S. 

The Members discussed and approved. a Comprmy Crov.-0Ji.mtli11g Raise of up to $1,000,000.00 

under Titie DI ofth~ JOBS Act to provide fonds to advance toil<; design"1ted .series to op1.:n additional 

rcstflwnnts and ~'lrs v.~111 video garnjng machines. The Manager:-; are hereby authorized to !ocat.e an 

suthQHZ.ed poru-J 1 to negotia.te and enter into agreements to accornplish the raise vvith the portal and otl1er 

entltks, such~ Suecker, Jepsun & Associates forall lc~1l vvork, and the Cm:npany CPA. for all reqoircd 

~1ceoun1.u1gv.:ork inch iding a revi~w of the Comp3..r;y foKmcittl statements as reqt ,ired to comple!e tht: rai.'5e. 

TIK 'Managers are ciuthorized lo r.:ro-vide such 1;:;viewed financial statemc::nt:;, ciisdosu.rc.s and 01h c1· mmcrial ;;-;s 

,·equired 10 accornp1i$h iJ1e mi se. T he .ivfru mgers m,e au1.hori-;,:ed to contract. to n-w.k-c a wel:•::;i tc, video ru:d 



<kscriplion docwnenls ncccS:>ary to accomplish the rai.<;~. 

No fort her n1atl1~rs being brought before the Membe~;. a dixms:ion of1hee(~fl1,ml busuK:~affuirsof 

lhe Corrrpany 'NHS h?.rl ar,d thcrr.ectrng Wtts.adjottmL'\'.l 

(vtan:h 7,2016 

iM'if'\.' LLC· ~ .. , .. I 
'; 

l'~-:J/."--...,.,.. .. x- ,,. ~ 
I\ .. ·-1.__ ft: V\../ 1 ., ' 
~ ~ ~L-, ---i __ ____ .. _ 
Sct\ior IfomC$, I.LC: 



ACTION BY THE MANAGERS OF 
THE 1T A.LIAN CAFE, LLC 

We, the undersigned, being all of the Managers of The Ilaliru1 Cafu, LlC, an TH inois Limited 

Liability Compm1y, do hereby tnkc the following ~crion nt its au~nwl meeting~ pursuant to thl'.' 

r1ulhorily of the nlinois I.imiled Liabiliiy Compnt1y Act nnd 111e Jinlic1n C.afe, T .LC Operating Aerecmenl as 

foliows: 

We he1eby wrdve all requirements for notice of tl iis meeting of !Viaungers. 

V./e hereby ratify the actions of either Manager si.11ce the Company's lasl unnua! meeting. 

·me Mcoi.l)..T.i have dccte<l {<Wnuifo S, Vizcanunnd Chri.'ity J. Jcpson 6-'l Mru111g~:r!> lo co1:ti111.1c:: to op,.:ratt: 

the Company. 

We r.i::-we reviev,'ed U1e Compa.t1y financial !)"lilkm~nls, financial condition aud lax rdunJS witl1 U1e 

Mcmlx..s and lhe lvk·rnkts have au1borr1_ed th~ lv1anagers to :file tl12 2014 foderal and sla~ ta-.z 1elt1.n-,s:. The 

The Me..ri1b~rs discussed and approved a Company Crowdfi.u1di.ng Rai:5c of up to $1 ,000,000.00 

m icter Title ill of U1e JOBS Act to provide funds tu advance to its designated se!ies to open additional 

rcsiallrants and bars with vicko ganung muchbes. TI1e Membe1·s auti)oriz<!d tt ! M1:U1agers to locate an 

authc,iizc-d ponnl, w negotiate and enter into agre~~mer.ts lo acc.omplish fr1c! mi e VJiih the pm:u., l ,u,d <.,ther 

entities, sw:h as Strecker, Jepson & Associates ~')r alt legal \Vork, nnd ti1e Cor .pany CPA tor all 1:eq11il~d 

accounting work including a. review of the Company financial statemenL<:i es , ~uired to compbte tl1t-> raise. 

·111e MembITT auU1odRd the i1v1anngers to provide such reviewed financ.!:.U s.1<1temenls! <lisclosures , .Kl ether 

mnterial as 11:quircd to a:complish the raise. The Man.agtrs were m1U1ori.zed by tl1c Member-::. to crn m1cr t, 

mak-2 (.I. website, video and dcscJiption documents necess;.,ry 10 2ccomplisl1 the ra' ;c_ Tl1e 1V{anagc1 ; 119 e.r. to 



take St.!ch i:!cl.ions as arc necessary as autho,iz1:.'Cl to accomplish the crowdfi .1dir _: :aise. 

No foitber r:nnt1eJ:s being brought before the Managers, a discUS! 01 of .he gtnc::rul b1 L5im':SS affairs of 

the Ccmpz..11.y ·was bad and tl::~ ·me.?ting W'3S adjoumec!. 

Mard17,2016. 

--- -~l,-
Ranulfo S. Vizcarra , Manager 

Bcini: all of the Managers of The ltalian Ca[e, LLC . ... ~ -



ACTION BY Tf.-Il~ !'v1EiVlBERH OF 
-en· 11~ ...:I lA"r C 4 r,- L.,. ..... l n:i.:.. ·"'- ... J't -···1..d!} Lt.. 

\Vt, tl-:e undersignoo. reicg all of the Mernbers ofT1re l!,_uian Cale, LlC, nn illioois Limitd 

The M~m~ di£'Cl~'<l iht! Compru1y' s Cmwtlfu:nding, Rai.se rmd u;n~l!l.i_.i.o extt::i1J tl:.::. d~1diin.: b·t" 

5!J(:i1 rru.st: \v Sq.,;.cmb.::r 30. 2017. -n~~ ~v.L.1r1..age.rs n.--c h~Nby riuri.:::r.ii.::.l 10 u:1.._e t>"\.1'.:'h uctio1\ to -;: .. 1tnd ·.h~ 

M1K L1f Gtcago, U.C.: 

Ddng .an tJf the Men.ibers of Tb'! ltalhL'1 Cafe, LLC. 



ACTION BY TIIE :MANAGERS OF 
THE ITALIAN CAFE, LLC 

Wi; the undersi~ Q.'!!ing all of the },:fanagers of The Italian Cafe, lLC, an lilinofa Limited 

Liability Company (Company), dD hereby take the follo\ving action at hs aimua1 meeting, 

pursumt lD the aubority of d~ illincis I .\mired Liability Cor~.ny A.ct an.d The Towi!Il Om; LLC ~ting 

Agra: .. 'tllenl:., as :f.ollov,•s: 

We ~..ereby ratity ull adicns of cit.her Man~C\-~ oo behalf of ,he Company sine.:: the fotrnntioo cf ihe 

Com:ixmy. 

The I:vlaTioos have elwe<l Ranulfo S. Vr:ttana and Oms1y J. Jqmn ns }..,~ to a:ntinue to opf'Ollc 

1.heComp?~t'ly. 

Tne·Audired Financial Sta!e:ments, D.r'.anciaJ conditi0!13l'l:d the t:1.x reUllUS oftl!e Comp.my ',);"1."e 

n:;View.xlanddiscusse.d and aP!X()ved by the Mernber.;, rrndthe Maoogem1"c"Ccived aui.horization uf!.he 

~.fun bees to file rllc Company fedetal and state income ta.~retum. for 2016 and the :mi 6 A.nm.r.al Repor? ou 

Fo.ntl C-AR fof '!Jie Com.pan.is ongoing crowdfunding raise. The i\1ana.gers ogre~ to fi[e these: documents . 

.S;:.pu:mber 30.2017 .. Tue ~A'anag_ers have agreed to take such action iO f:x.!:e:nd the ck:--,:dline-. 

No further m atter:, bcmg brought be.fore T.he tvlanagas. a ~on oftl'!e gc?l"~l l'II..Einess aJfiii,-:suf 

the Co:ureny was 1-ad a1d the meeting \\,;JS adjooom 

lv.f.art.ll Z4. 2.01.7 

lffZ%1? . ----- ~----
Rai tulfo Vizcarra, Managtr 

.,. ____ 
.. -~ ., '{r ·------'- ~,---- - -----. ~_:_-ehiis;i~-~~ 

Being all of the Managers of The ltalian Cafe,. LLC. 



ACTION BY THE MEMBf:l~S OP 
THE ITAl,l•\N CAFE, Ll...C 

We, lk tm<ler:-igncd, king wl of the Members of ·nic:: k11irn1 Cafe, Ll.C, an !llinoi:.: Lindt-.:,~ 

Liability c~-.i11pany (C\,mpany), do htrcby iakr.: lbc ltiJh.rlA inp. :1ctinn m rts ,u,11w1i 1r,c·ctin~;. 

prn~,11JI to the authrnity of rJ1e Tllinoi~ f .imit1..xi Uubility Company 1\c1 ar:,.:l 111<:: ltt1liun Cafe:. Ll .(' Opt.'liltin~ 

,.\~~11:.::nicnl a._ folkms: 

,1r th.: i.!ttions wkc;n hy Ul\.: Mmuigi.:rs and tlJC t\'kmte1;-; oi'tJn.: Company :iirn:t:. itx tont1a1.J1111. 

111~ Audited F;m1rn:ial S!atcmcms., fi.ni.incial lXln<liikm al\<l the ra:-. r~tur11:,.; of lh\$ C<,mp1my \\·...:re: 

t~il.St the tarl;d funding amount lQ .July 31, 201 S ~nd lhi: wntr-1"1 \\1fo nay \1ark.~Th;rt.--...; . 

No !m1hL.:r blli111css being brought bcfon: the !v{cmbet'$. ,J Ji:;.;t~vo orth<: g~1-.:ml lxc;i11i.:~ afiw1:; 111' 

'\r,ril 4.201 S 

I ~, 

/

' • ·i /,- y,> \ 1 -.{~~·,.- .. •' v {.?t:....-

·--''-----·· .. -·--

(ki11i} :din( th-:: l\·lembct;, of The l!oli.:in Cufo. Lf. C. 

~

,J ; • 

r -c.,/f ) L-----B:. _ _ (A ~ -;------·· .. 
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ACTION BY THE MEMBERS OF 
THE ITALIAN CAFE, LLC 

We, the undersigned, being all of the Members of The Italian Cafe, LLC, an Illinois Limited 
Liability Company (Company), do hereby take the following action at its annual meeting, 
pmsuant to the authority of the Illinois Limited Liability Company Act and The Italian Cafe, 
LLC Operating Agreement, as follows: 

We hereby waive all requirements for notice of this meeting of Members. \Ve hereby ratify and 
approve all of the actions taken by the Managers and the Members of the Company since the last 
meeting of Members. 

V,/e hereby nominate and elect as the Managers of the Company, to act as such Managers until 
their successors shall have been duly elected and qualified, the following: 

Christy J. Jepson and RanuJfo S. Vizcarra 

The Audited Financial State11:1ents, financial condition and the tax returns of the 
Company were discussed and approved by the Members, and the Managers are hereby 
authorized to file the Company federal and state income tax returns for 2018. 

No further matters being brought before the Members, a di scussion of the general business 
affairs of the Company was had and the meeting was adjourned. 

March 4, 2019. 

M2K of Chicago, LLC: Senior Homes, LLC 

By: ___,~'-------------

Being all of the Members of The Italian Cafe, LLC. 



ACTION BY THE MANAGERS OFJ 
j 

THE IT ALlAN CAFE, LLC I 
I 

We, the undersigned, being all of the Managers of The Italian Cafe, LLC, an Illinois Limited 
Liability Company (Company), do hereby take the following action:at its annual meeting, 

I 

pursuant to the authority of the Illinois Limited Liability Company ~ct and The Italian Cafe, 
LLC Operating Agreement, as foUows: I 
We hereby waive all requirements for notice of this meeting of Mai)agers. 

J 
' 

We hereby ratify all actions of either Manager acting on behalf of tl~e Company since the last 
meeting of the Managers of the Company, ' 

The Members have elected Ranulfo S. Vizcan a and Christy J. Jepson as Managers to continue to 
I 

operate the Con1t)a1w. i 
J • I 

The Audited Financial Statements, financial condition and the tax returns o f the 
Company were reviewed and discussed and approved by the Membbrs, and the Managers 
received authorization of the Members to file the Company federal and state income tax relurns 
for 2018 I 

The Managers agreed to fi le these documents. 
i 

No further matters being brought before the Managers, a discussion'.:of the general business 
affairs of the Company was had and the meeting was adjourned. : 

March 4, 2019 

Ranulfo S. Vizcarra, Manager 

Being all of the Managers of The Jtalian Cafe, LLC. 



ACTION BY THE MEMBERS OF 
THE IT ALI AN CAFE, LLC 

We, the undersigned, being all of the Members of The Italian Cafe, LLC, an Illinois Limited 
Liability Company (Company), do hereby take the following action at its annual meeting, 
pursuant to the authority of the Illinois Limited Liability Company Act and The Italian Cafe, 
LLC Operating Agreement, as follows: 

We hereby waive all requirements for notice of this meeting of Men'.ibers. We hereby ratify and 
approve all of the actions taken by the Managers and the Members of the Company since the last 
meeting of Members. 

We hereby nominate and elect as the Managers of the Company, to act as such Managers until 
their successors shall have been duly elected and qualified, the following; 

Christy J. Jepson and Ranulfo S. Vizcarra 

The Audited fiinancial Statements, Gnancial condition and .the tax returns of the 
Company were discussed and approved by the Members, and the Managers are hereby 
authorized to file the Company fede!'al and state income tax returns for 2019. 

Nu further matters being brought before the Members, a discussion of the general business 
affairs of the Company was had and the meeting was adjourned. 

March 2, 2020. 

M2K of Chicago, LLC: Senior Homes, LLC 

By: _ _...__~------

Being all of the Members of The Italian Cafe, LLC. 



ACTION BY TI IE MANAGERS OF 

THE ITALIAN CAFE, LLC 

We, the undersigned, being all of the Managers of The Italian Cafe, LLC, an Illinois Limited 
Liability Company (Company), dv hereby take the following nction at its annual meeting, 
pursuant to the authority of the Illinois Limited Liability Company Acl and The Italian Cafe, 
I ,LC OJJerating Agreeirn:nc, as fol.lows: 

We hereby waive all requirements for notice of this meeting of Managers. 

We hereby ratify all actions of either Manager acting on behalf of the Company since the last 
meeting of the Managers of the Compnny. 

The Members have cleclcd Ranulfo S. Vizcarra and Christy J. kpsun as Managers to continue to 
operate the Company. 

The Audited Fillancial Statements, financial condition and the tax returns of the 
Company were reviewed and discu~sed and approved by the lvf embers, and the Managers 
received authorization of the Members to file the Company federal and state income lax Tt;Lurns 

for 2019 

The Managers agreed to file these documents. 

No further matters being hrought before the Managers, a discussion of the general business 
fltfairs of the Company was had an<:l 1he meeting was adjourned. 

March 2, 2020 

Ranull"o S. Vizcarra, Manager 

Reing all of the Managers ofTbe Italian Cafe, LLC. 



ACTION BY THE MEMBERS OF 
THE ITALIAN CAFE, LLC 

We, the undersigned, being all of the Members of The Italian Cafe, LLC, an Illinois Limited 
Liability Company (Company), do hereby take the following action at its annual meeting, 
pursuant to the authority of the Illinois Limited Liability Company Act and The Italian Cafe, 
LLC Operating Agreement, as follows: 

We hereby waive all requirements for notice of this meeting of Members. We hereby ratify and 
approve all of the actions taken by the l'v1anagers and the Members of the Company since the last 
meeting of Members. 

We hereby nominate and elect as the Managers of the Company, to act as such Managers w1til 
their successors shall have been duly elected and qualified, the fo llowing: 

Christy J. Jepson and Ranulfo S. Vizcarra 

The Members discussed the preparation of a Test The Waters Document to determine the interest 
of investment advisors to raise money for the Company through a Crowd Funding Raise through 
the Crowdsoucefunding.com Po1tal, and after the discussion they instructed the Managers to 
undertake the preparation of the Test the Waters Document. 

The Audited Financial Statements, financial condition and the tax returns of the Company were 
discussed and approved by the Members, and the Managers are hereby authorized to fi le the 
Cornpany federal and state income tax returns for 2020. 

No further matters being brought before the Members> a discussion of the general business 
affairs of the Company was had and the meeting was adjourned. 

March 1, 2021. 

M2K of Chicago, LLC: Senior Homes, LLC 

By:--1--~--- ----

Being all of the Members of The Italian Cafe, LLC. 

.... 



ACTION BY THE MANAGERS OF 

THE ITALIAN CAFE, LLC 

We, the undersigned, being all of the Managers of The Italian Cafe, LLC, an Illinois Limited 

Liability Company (Company), do hereby take the following action at its annual meeting, 
pursuant to the authority of the Illinois Limited Liability Company Act and The Italian Cafe, 
LLC Operating Agreement, as follows: 

We hereby waive all requirements for notice of this meeting of Managers. 

We hereby ratify all actions of either Manager acting on behalf of the Company since the last 
meeting of the Managers of the Company. 

The Members have elected Ranulfo S. Vizcarra and Christy J. Jepson as Managers to continue to 
operate the Company. 

The Members directed the managers to prepare a Test The Waters Document to 
determine the interest of investment advisors to raise money for the Company through a Crowd 
Funding Raise through the Crowdsoucefunding.com Portal, and after a discussion the Managers 
agreed to undertake the preparation of the Test the Waters Document. 

The Audited Financial Statements, financial condition and the tax returns of the 
Company were reviewed and discussed an.cl approved by the Members, and the Managers 
received authorization of the Members to file the Company federal and state income tax returns 
for 2020 

The Managers agreed to file these documents. 

No fui·ther matters being brought before the Iv[anagers, a discussjon of the general business 
affairs of the Compan y was had and the meeting was adjourned. 

March I , 2021 

Ranul~ager 

Being all of the Managers of The Italian Cafe, LLC. 



ACTION BY THE MEMBERS or 
THE JTALTAN CAFE, LLC 

\Ve, the undersigned, being all of the Members of The Italjan Cafe, LLC, an Illinois Limited 
Li~bility Company (Company), do hereby take the fo llowing act ion at its annua l meeting, 
pursuant to the authorjty of the Ill inois Limited Liability Compnny Acl and The Italian Cafe, 
LLC Operating Agreement, ns follows: 

We hereby waive al I requirements for notice of this meeting of Members. We hereby rati fy and 
approve all of the actions taken by the Managers and the Members of the Company since the la~t 
meeting of Members. 

We hereby nominate and elect as the Managers of the Company, to act as such Managers until 
their successors shall have been duly c:lccted and qualified, the following: 

Christy J. Jepson and Ranulfo S. Vizcarra 

The Members discussed the interest received in the Test TI1e Waters Document by investment 
advisors to rnise money for lhc Company through a Crowd Funding Raise through the 
Crowdsoucefunding.com Portal , and aft.er the discussion about the contents of the offering, rhey 
ins tructed the Managers to undertake the p1·cpnration ru1d filing of the Form C document with the 
Crowdsourccfunding Portal anu the SEC. 

The Audited Financial Statements, financial condition and the tux returns of the Company were 
discussed and approved by the Members, and the Managers arc hereby authorized to file the 
Company federal and state i11c0me tnx returns for 2021 . 

No fu11her matters being brought before the Members, n discuss ion of the general busincs:-; 
affai rs of the Company was ha<l and the meeting was adjourned. 

March 7, 2022. 

tv12K of Chicago, LLC: Senior Homes, LLC 

By:-~1----, ---- --

Being all of the Members of The Italian Cafe, LLC. 



ACTION BY THE MANAGERS OF 

THE ITALIAN CAFE, LLC 

We, the undersigned. being all of the Managers of The Jt(lli an Cafe, LLC, an Illinois Limited 
Liability Company (Company), do hereby take the following action at its annual meeting, 
pursuant lu the authority of the Illinois Limited Liabi lity Compnny Act and The Italian Cafe, 
LLC Operating Agreement, as fo llows: 

We hereby wai vc al I requirements for notice of this meeting of Managers. 

We hereby ratify aU actions of either Manager acting on behalf of the Company since the last 
meeting of the Managers of the Company. 

The Members have elected Ranu! fo S. Vizcarra and Christy J. Jepson as Managers to continue to 
operate the Company. 

The Members directed the managers to und<:!rtakc the preparation and fi ling of the form 
C document, ith the CrowJsourcefunding Portal 11nd the SEC, and after a discussion about the 
contents of the documents , the Managers agreed to undertake the preparation and filing of the 
Form C Documents. S1recker, Jepson & Associates was retained to complete the documents. 

The Audited Financial Statements, financial condition and the tax returns of the 
Company were reviewed and discussed and approved by the Members, and the ~fanagers 
received authorization of the Members to file the Comprmy fed eral and sta le income tax returns 
for 202 1. 

The Mam,gers agreed to Ii le these documents . 

No further matters being brought before the Managers, a discussion of the general business 
affairs of the Company wa:j had and the mcding was adjourned . 

March 7,~ 

Rc1nulfo S. V izcana. Manager 

Being all of the Mn.nugers of The Italian Cafe. LLC. 



THF. JTALIAN C/WE LLC 

FINANClAL STATFMENTS 

For the year ended 
December 31 , ?.0LJ 



.... 

To the Board of Directors 
The Italian Cafe LLC 
Lake Zurich, Illinois 

Opinion 

l11dependent Audit(lf's Opinion 

8831 N. Kennell1 Terrace 
Skokie, IL 60076 
Phone. 847-673-4010 
f ax: 847-673-4012 

rrosenba@chir.r1gobooth.edu 

We have audited the statement of fi nancial position of Th<.: Italian Cafe LL(' (" Italian 
Cafe") as of December JI , 202 1, and Lhc related statemi..:nts of operations and cash flows 
for the year then ended nnd the related notes to the fi mmcial statements. 

In our opinion, the financial stntemcnts referred to above present fai rl y, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Tl.1l! Italian Cafo LLC as of December 31, 2021 and the 
results of its operations and it:- cash nows the y~ar then ended in conformity with 
general ly accepted accounting principles. 

Basis for Opinion 

We:condupted our aud it in act:ordance with auditin& standards gcn~rally accepted in the 
United States of America. Our responsibi li ti~s under those standnrds arc further 

l 

di.:scribt:d in the Auditor's Responsibilities for th~ Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We arc required to bt..: independent of ftalian Cafe and to meet our 
other ethical responsibi lities in accordance with the rekvanl ethical rcquirenwnts relating 
to our audits. We bclie\'C the audit ...:vidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
approp1iate lo provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Manngement's Responsibility for the Financial Shllcmcnts 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fai r presentation of the fin:mcial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally acu:ptcd in the United 
States of America, aml for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to Lhe preparation and fair prescntatiu11 of financia l statements that nre 
free from matc1ial misstatement, \\'hdher due to fraud or error. 

In prepmin'g the fi nancial statements, manngemcnl is required to cvalunte whether there: 
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that rnise substantial doubt about 
Itali an Cafo's ab il ity to continue as a going coneern within one year aflt:r the date that the 
fi nam;iul statements arc avail ab le to be is:suetl . 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Fhrnncial Statements 



Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 

as a whole are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance wi th generally accepted auditing standards wil l ahvays detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovenide of internal 
control. 

Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial 
likelihood that, i nd1 vidually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgement 
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing a audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the aud it. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks. Such p rocedures include design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, \.Ve express no such 
opinion. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of significant accoun ting estimates m ade by management, as well as evaluate the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in 
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt abo ut Italian Cafe, LLC's ability to 
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged \.Vith governance regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and 
certain internal control related matters that we identified during the audit.. 

May 10, 2022 
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THE IT ALlAN CAFE LLC 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
DECEMBER 31, 2021 

Current Assets 
Cash 

Other assets 
Notes receivable 
Due from affiliates 

Total assets 

ASSETS 

UABILlTIES AND MEMBERS' CAPITAL 

CmTent liabilities 
Accrued state replacement tax 
Total current liabilities 

Long term liabilities 
Due to affiliates 
Total liabilities 

$ I 01,600 

144,759 
75,597 

$321 ,956 

$ 116 
116 

99,807 
99,923 

Members' Capital 222,033 

$321,2.5n 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thv financial s tatcmc11ts. 3 



STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND 

CHANGES IN MEMBERS' CAPITAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

Revenues: 
Interest 

EXPENSES: 
Interest expense to affiliates 
Professional fees 
Other 

Total expenses 

Operating income 

State replacement tax 

Net income 

Members' capital, beginning of year, 

Contributions 

Member8 ' capital, end of year 

5,586 
5,001 

455 
11.042 

5,138 

116 

5,022 

l l9,51 J 

97.500 

$_222.033. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 4 



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

CASH FLOWS f ROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net income 

Adjustments to reconcile to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 

Increase in accrued interest rectlivable 
. Net cash used by operating 

activities 

CASH f<LOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Distributions to members 
Net contributions from members 
Increase( decrease) in advances to affiliates, net 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH, END OF YEAR 

$ 5,022 

(9,528) 

(4,506) 

97,500 
8,581 

106,081 

25 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 5 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1: Natur~ of Activities 

The Italian Cafe LLC "(Italian Cafo) was organized in 20 14 to provi<lc financing to its' 
individual seri~s so those sc1ies can U\,:quirc, lease, <.kvclop and rcno\'ate restaurant and 
bar properties and lease or sub.Jcase those properties to restaurant and bar operators. 

OTE 2: Significant Accounting Policies 

(A)Principlcs of Accounting 

ltulian Cafe·s policy is to prepare its fi nancial statements using the accrual basis 
of acc.;ounting. Under thi s method , revenues arc recognized when earned, and 
expenditures are recogni zed when the obligation is incun·cd. If an expenditure 
results in an asset having an estimated usefu l Ii fo extcnJ ing substantially beyond 
the year of acquisition, the expend iture is capitafo'.:1.:d and deprcciatctl over the 
estimat1.:d useful Jife of the a::;scl. 

(B)Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make e::;timatcs 
ancl assumptions Lhut affect tht..: reported muounts of assets and liabi lities and 
disclosure of contingent assets an<.! liabilities at the date of the finurn.:ial statements 
arn.l the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting pcrfod. 
Actual resul ts could di ffor from those estimates. 

(C) lncome Taxes 

ltnlian Cafe has elected to be taxed ns a partnership under the Internal Revenue 
Code. Income or loss of the LLC is repo1iablc on the tflx retums of its 
shareholders. Itali an Cafc's income ta,, returns for 202 1, 2020, and 2019 arc 
subject to examination by the lR.S. generally for three years atlcr they were filed . 

Italian Cafe is ~uhject to 11Jinois replacement tax of 1.5%. 

NOTE 3: Notes Receivab le 

1 otes receivable rcpr~sents a note from a bonower that is in default. The note is subject 
to litigation in which Italian Cale expects to pn;vail. 

NOTE 4: Credit Risk Com.:entration 

1talian Cal~ maintains iis <.:ash hulances in one financial institution. The balances are 
insur~cl by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At December 3 I , 
202 1. there were no uninsured cash balances. 

6 



NOTES TO FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 5: Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through May 10, 2022 which is the date the 
financial statements wen:: available to bv issued. 

7 



THE ITAL.lAN CAFE LLC 

b'INANCIAL STA1'EMENTS 

For the years ended 
December 31, 2018, 2019 and 2020 

And th8 p e riod ended M~y 31, 2021 



ROSETREE & Company, Ltd. 

To the Ooard of Directors 
The ltalian Cafe LLC 
Lake Zurich, Illinois 

Independent Auditor's Oginion 

Report on the Financial Statements 

88~-l 1 N. l<ennet11 Terrace 
Skokie, IL 60076 
Phone 847-673-4010 
Fax: 847-673-40 '12 
rrosenba@chicvgoboot11 edu 

We have audited the statement of finn.ncial position of The Italian Cnfc LLC (" Ita lian 
Cafe") as of December 3 1, 2019 and 2020 and May 31, 2021 , and the related statements 
of operations and cash flows for the years and period then ended and the related notes to 
the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility fo·r the Finn.ncial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements; this includes tht' des ign. implementation, and maintenance of internal contro l 
relevant to the preparation and fair prescntution of ti nancinl statements that arc free from 
material misstatement, whether due lo frauc.J or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Out· responsibi lity is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United Stutes of America. These standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finarn .. :ial statements arc free or 
material misstatement. 

An aud it involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the ri sks of material misstatement of the financial 
slatcmenls, whether due to fraud nr error. ln making those risk asst::ssments, the audi tor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparat ion and fo.ir pre.sen lat ion of the 
finan<.: ic:11 !>laleme nts in o rder to design audit procedures that are upprupriatc in the 
circwnstunces, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness or 
the entity's internul control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates mu.de by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. 

We bel ieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 



In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al l material 
respects1 the financial po:sition of Italian Cafe as of December 31, 20 19 and 2020 and 
May 31, 202 l anJ lhe results of its operations and its cash 11ows the years and period then 
ended in accordance wi th accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America . 

Ju ly 301 202 1 

2 



Current Assets 
Cash 

Other assets 
Notes receivable 
Due from affiliates 

Total assets 

Current liabilities 
Accrued state replacement tax 
Total current liabilities 

Long term liabilities 
Due to affiliates 
Total liabilities 

Members' Capital 

THE TT A LIAN CAFE LLC 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL P OSITION 

DECEMBER 31, 2019 and 2020 
and MAY 31, 2021 

$ 

2019 

45 

125,702 
85 .114 

$219~-

ASSETS 

$ 

2020 

25 

135,231 
83. 181 

$218.437 

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' CAPITAL 

$ 118 $ 116 
118 116 

58.931 98.810 
59,049 98,926 

I5 L8l2 119.511 

$21.Q.861 $illA17 

2021 

$ 25.0 19 

139,173 
60,855 

$225.047 

$ 40 
40 

102.921 
102,961 

122,086 

$225.041 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 3 



STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND 
CHANGES fN MEMBERS' CAPrT AL 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2020 
AND THE PERIOD ENDED MAY 31, 2021 

Revenues: 
Interest 

EXPENSES: 
Interest expense 
Professional fees 
Equipment 
Other 

Total expenses 

Operating income 

State replacement tax 

Net income 

Members' capital , beginning of year, 

Contributions 

Distributions to members 

Members ' capital, end of year 

2019 

$ 16,900 

5,275 
2,000 

87 
700 

8.062 

8,838 

ill 

8,720 

361,022 

29.843 

(247.773) 

$ 151,81 2 

2020 

$ 16.896 

8,418 

613 
9.08 l 

7,815 

116 

7,699 

151,812 

(40.000) 

$119.511 

2021 

$ 6507 

3,491 
330 

70 
3,89 1 

2,616 

40 

2,575 

l l 9,5 11 

$122,086 

The accompanying norns are an integral part of the financial statements. 4 



ST A TEMENT OF CASH FLO'ATS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2020 

AND THE PERIOD ENDED MAY 31, 2021 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net income 

Adjustments to reconcile to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 

Increase in notes receivable 
Increase(decrease) in accrued replacement tax 

Net cash used by operating 
activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Distributions to members 
Net contributions from members 
Increase( decrease) in ad v:ances to affiliates, net 

Net cash provided(used) by financing activities 

CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH, END OF YEAR 

2019 

$ 8,720 

(9,529) 
88 

(721) 

(247,773) 
29,843 
(41.336) 

(259,266) 

260.032 

$ _ _ 45 

2020 

$ 7,699 

$ 

(9,529) 
Q) 

(1.832) 

(40,000) 

41.812 

1,812 

45 

25 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

2021 

$ 2,575 

(3,942) 
lli) 

(l.443) 

26.437 

26,437 

25 

$~0L9 

5 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE l: Nature of Activities 

The Italian Cafe LLC "(Italian Cafe) was organized in 2014 to provide financing for 
restaurant video gaming. 

NOTE 2: Significant Accounting Policies 

(A)Princip!es of Accounting 

Italian Cafe's policy is to prepare its financial statements using the accrual ba<:i is 
of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when earned, and 
expenditures are recognized when the obligation ts incurred. [fan expenditure 
rcsullc; in an asset having an estimated useful life extending substantially beyond 
the year of acquisition, the expenditure is capital ized and depreciated over the 
estimated useful life of the asset. 

(B)Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial stntements requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
di~closure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and the rcpo1ted amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

(C)Income Taxes 

Italian Cafe has elected to be taxed as a partnership under the Internal Revenue 
Code. Income or loss of the LLC is reportable on the tax returns of its 
shareholders. Italian Cafe's income tax returns for 2020, 2019, and 2018 are 
subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years after they were filed. 

Italian Cafe is subject to Illinois replacement tax of 1.5%. 

NOTE 3: Notes Receivable 

Noles receivable represents a note from a borrower that is in default. The note is subject 
to litigation in which Italian Cafe expects lo prevai l. 

NOTE 4: Credit Risk Concentration 

Italian Cafe maintains its cash balances in one financial institutions. The bfllances are 
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At December 31, 
2019 and 2020 and May 31, 2021, there were no uninsured cash balances. 

NOTE 5: Subsequent Events 

6 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through July 30, 2021 which is the date the 
financial statements were available lo be issued. 

7 



Mainstreet Rejuvenation Notes 
The ltal!an Cafe. llC 

Building a Better Bar and Restaurant Experience in Illinois with Video Gaming 

~ The Mainstreet Renovation & Rejuvenation 1Votes provide the funds to Build and Equip Illino is Restaurants and Bars 

y Skilled Restaurant and Bar Operators make a profit in the Restaurant and Bar 

~ lvfore diverse and modern experiences draw in additional customers 

~ Video Gaming Machines increase the profit margin in the Restaurant and Bar (see the Appendix) 

> A unique structure designed to provide safety for the j\!fainstreet Note Holder 

T his is a crowdfundingsolicitation of interest pursuant to 17 C.F.R. 227.206. No money or other consideration is being soli cited , and if senl in respon se, wi ll 
not be accepted. No offer to buy the securities can be accepted and no part of the purchase price can be rece ived until the offering statement is filed and .only 
Lhrough an intermediary's platform. A person's indication of interesl involves no obligati on or commit ment of any kind. "" 



Table of Contents 
~ Executive Summary 

~ Business Structure Benefits 

~ Flow of Investn1ent Funds 

? Contem.plated Debt Offering - Terms Sum1nary 

~ Debt Service Coverage 

>- Alnortization Schedule 

~ APPENDIX: 

• LLC Management 

• IL Statewide Video Gaining Revenue Data 
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Executive Summary 

~ The Issuer's business is making loans to its designated Series to acquire, build or remodel and equip 
restaurants and bars and then lease those establishments, as expansion opportunities to experienced 
Bar Restaurant Operators 

~ The ltalian Cafe, LLC (LLC) is an Illinois Series lin1ited liability company (Series) with Series A, B 
and C Designated at this time 

~ Each Series is an auton0111ous entity with its own assets, liabilities, net \Vorth, incorne, expenses, 
men1bers and managers. An individual Series is the only entity responsible for that Series debts, not 
the 1ne111bers of that Series or any other Series or the LLC 

3 



Executive Summary 

> Each Series intends to purchase or long-ten11 lease a restaurant and bar facility, build or re1nodel~ 
modernize and equip the facility, Lease or sublease the facility to an experienced restaurant and bar 
operator that will offer food, spirits and video gaming 

>- Mainstreet Rejuvenation Notes ("Notes") are Senior Unsecured Notes that are fully amortized and 
paid over 10 years 

~ The Notes pay 10% annual interest and principal in 40 equal quarterly payn1ents of $39.84 per each 
$1,000 par value Note 

~ 



Executive Summary 

> The LLC intends to sell up to $5,000,000 of $1 ,000 Par Value Main Street Rejuvenation Notes 

>- The proceeds fro1n the sale of the Notes will be used by the LLC to make loans to each of its 
designated series (Series Loans) 

~ The loan proceeds will be used to acquire, develop, equip and lease the restaurant and bar 
facility to an experienced restaurant and bar operator, with each Series Loan being fully 
amortized and paid over 10 years \Vitb l 0% annual interest in 40 equal quarterly payn1ents of 
principal and interest 

5 



Executive Summary 

~ Each Series Lease to the Restaurant and Bar Operator Tenant ,vill require monthly Base Rent in 
an ainount sufficient for the Series to pay the underlying rent or payments on the acquisition 
financing and the n1onthly Series Loan pay1nents to the LLC 

>- Therefore, the Base Rent covers the Series debt service costs 

~ Additional revenues from Percentage Rent under the Lease provides profit to the Series and 
increases the debt service coverage available to the Main Street Rejuvenation Notes 

5 



Business Structure Benefits 

> Benefit of the Lease Structure; 

~ The Note proceeds are loaned by the LLC to each Series with a Lease Agree1nent ,vith Qualified 
Operators of Bar Restaurants in locations approved for Video Gaming 

;;:, ~fhe Series Loans are ,nae.le to the Series Landlord under the Lease and not to the Bar Restaurant 
business 

~ In the event of a dcfau It by the Tenant restaurant operator, a loss of the Tenant's business, liquor or 
gaming license or if the Tenant goes out of business the Lease is terminated and a new· ]ease can be 
written to a nevv Tenant that takes over a fully equipped restauranl ready to operate 

7 



Business Structure Be·nefits 

~ The new tenant gets its. own operating, liquor and garning license and begins operating 

~ The Series continues to pay the underlying lease rent and the payments to the LLC on the Series Loan and 
the LLC continues to pay the Mainstreet Rejuvenation Note payments 

> If the structure provided for a loan to the restaurant business or equity in the restaurant and the 
restaurant defaulted on its lease, lost its licenses or vvent out of bush1ess, the investors investment 
would be lost 

~ The Series retains control of the Lease that establishes a definitive means to repJace the Operator in 
the event of the Operator's default 

8 



Business Strt1cture Benefits 

~ Benefits fro1n Percentage Rent; 

~ The Series is n1uch 111ore likely to meet its debt service obligations from the Percentage Rent 
under the Lease from the Video Gan1ing 1nachines 

>'-' In addition, the Bar Restaurant Operator is more likely to succeed with the profits derived from the 
Tenant's Video Gaining revenues earned on the pren1ises 

:i 



Business Structure Benefits 

? Component 1-each Series Lease to the Restaurant and Bar Operator Tenant \Vill require 
Percentage Rent of 50% of the establishment's net video gaming machine inco1ne and all 
other non-food and beverage income 

~ This provides a significant added revenue source for assurance of Note repayment (see 
APPENDIX - Video Gaming and the Illinois Gaming Board Monthly Reports at: 
https//:v\'\\'\v.igb.illinois.gov/videoreports.aspx) 

~ Component 2 - each Series Lease to the Restaurant and Bar Operator Tenant, will require 
Base Rent pl us Percentage Rent of l 5 % of all food and beverage sales over the Base An1ount. 
The Base A.n1ount of food and beverage sales is the Base Rent djvided by 1 SCYo 

0 



Flow of Investment Funds 
Note Holders 

Mainstreet 
R

. . I 
eJuvcnat1011 ~ 

1.. Notebolder J 

I... 

Investment 

Distribution to RJA 
for the benefit of 

Noteholders J 

The Italian Cafe LLC 

-

l 

Master LLC 

The Italian Cafe 

Loan to 
Designated 
Series 

Quarterly Payments 
to Notcholders 

Designated Series 

Series A, B, C, D, 
etc. 

Space acquisition 

Bar/Restaurant/Video Gaming 

~ 

Uar/Restaurant/G am ing 

lndependent Operators 

", 

- ---- - Build & Equip - Lease Agreement 
Sub Lease to Operator 

Loan Repayment to 
The Italian Cafe 

LLC 

l 

I 

Rent Paid to Series .includes: 

Base Rent Equal to Underlying 
Rent 

and Series Loan Payments 

I Percentage Rent Including 

~'- 50% of Video Game Revenue ) 

s::: ~ -~ - 4:- :;. 



Debt Service Coverage 
Y The Base Rent for each Lease will be structured to cover its pro-rnta share of the Series costs. including debt 

service for the Series Loans 

>- The $5,000,000 of investment proceeds could provide between 20 and 30 Bar Restaurant locations 

>- The Video Gaming revenue alone on 20 - 30 operating properties is estimated as follows: 

J;> The average Video Gaming revenue for each establ ishment in Illinois was $12,545. in March 202 J (sec 
APPENDLX - Video Gaming) 

> The cstirnated Percentage Rent of 50o/o of the $12,545 applied to 20 - 30 operating properties vvould 
generate $120,000 - $180,000 profit per month or $360,000 - $540,000 per quarter to the cornbined 
Series after the Base Rent was used to pay the Series Loan payments to the LLC, and after the LLC 
used those payments to make the Note payments 

};., Applying this anticipated profit from Percentage Rent to the combined Series to additional Debt 
Service Coverage on the Notes, would provide approximately l _8 - 2. 7 of additionaJ debt service 
coverage for the Notes 

(The quarterly debt service payment to the Notes is $ I 97. 700. per quarter in this example) 

1 
2 



Contemplated Debt Offering - Terms Summary 

~ 1 Oo/o annualized Interest Rate 

~ 1 Year Call Protection 

~ Qua11erly Payment of Interest & Principal 

> 10 Year Amortization Schedule for Principal pay1nents 

> Offering Staten1ent filed vvith The SEC upon offering launch 

1 
j 



10 Year Amortization Schedule - $1,000 Par 
--

ENDOF NOTE l<J*ANNUA.l QUAATERLV PRNGPAL QUARlERLY ENOOF NOTE _ 1°" ANNUAL_ QUARTtRLY PRINCIPAL QUARTERLY 
·-- . -

OUARf.ER PRINOPAL INTERESTRATE PAYMENT RIDJCTION ltiT'EREST OUARTt.R PRJNCIPAL INTI:RCST RAT( PAYMENT REDUCTION lmCR.CST 
- -

1 Sl,C:00.00 0.02.5 $ 39.3'1 $ 14.84 s 25.00 21 S 620.92 0.025 s 39.84 s 24.32 s_ 15.52 
- - - - . -· .. -

2 $ 985.15 0 .02.5 s 39.84 $ 15.21 s 24.63 22 S 595.60 0.025 s 39.84 s 24.92 s 14.92 
. - - - -- - - - - -
3 $ 959.95 0 .02.5 s 39.84 $ 15.59 s 24.25 23 S 571.68 0.025 s 39.64 s 25.55 _s_ - 14. 2:9 -- -- -- - ·- - - --
<1 S 9Stl.36 0 .025 $ 39.8-.t s 15.~ $ 23.86 Z4 S 545. 13 0.025 s 39.64 s 25.19 s 13. 55 

- --- - - -
s $ 938.38 0.025 $ 39.84 $ 16.38 $ 23.45 25 S 5I9.94 0 .025 s 39.64 s 25.84 _s_ 13.00 - - - -- -

- _ .... - - Z6 $ 493.10 0 .025 s 39.64 s s 
6 S 92200 0.025 $ 39.&:1 s 16.79 s 23.05 - - - - 27.51 12.33 

- -· -- - - - - 27 S 41i5.59 0 .025 s 39.64 s 26.20 s lL64 
7 S 9:lS.21 0 .025 $ 39.84 $ 17.21 $ 2263 - - -

- - - -- - - - - - . ZS $ 437.39 0.025 s 39.64 s 28.91 s 10.93 
8 S 888.00 0.025 $ 39.84 $ 17.64 $ 22.20 --- -· 29 S 408.48 0 .025 s 39.64 s 2:3.63 s 10. 21 
9 $ 870.36 0.025 $ 39.84 $ 18.08 $ ll76 -- - -- - -

- - - -- - 30 S 378..65 0 .025 s 39.64 s 30.37 s 9.47 
10 s 852.Z7 0.025 $ 39.84 $ 18.53 s ll31 - -

-- .._ -- - - - · 31 S 346.48 0 .025 s 39.&1 s 31.13 s B.71 
11 $ 833.74 0 .025 $ 39.84 $ 19.00 s 20.24 - - - - - - - - - -· 

- - - 32 S 317.35 0.025 s 39.64 s 31.9"1 s 7.93 

u $ 814.75 0 .025 ·$ 39.84 s 19.47 s 20.37 - 33' - -
- - - S 265.45 0.025 s 39.64 s 32.70 s 7. 14 

13 S 795.Z7 0 .025 s 39.2<1 $ 19.95 $ 19.28 - - . - -
- - - - - 34 S 252.75 0 .025 s 39.64 s 33.52 s 6.32 

1<1 S 77532 0.025 $ 3'3.84 s 20.45 $ 19.32 -
35 S 219.22 0 .025 s 39.64 s 3:i.35 s 5 .46 - - - - - . - - --- - -- -

0.025 $ 3'3.8:J $ 20.97 $ 18.87 
-

15 S 754.86 36 S 164.67 0 .025 s 39.64 s 3S.22 s 4.62 -- - - - · 
$ s 21.49 $ 18.35 15 S 733.83 0.025 3'3.84 37 S 149.65 0 .025 s 39.64 s 35.10 s 3.74 -· 

17 $ 712.40 0.025 .$ 39.Z..1 s ll.03 $ 17.81 36 S 113.55 0.02.S s 39.84 s 37.00 s 2..64 . . - --
12 $ 69:).37 0 .025 s 3'3.24 s ll..58 $ 17.26 39 $ 76 .. 55 o.ozs $ .39 .. 84 s 37.93 s l.91. - - . . - - · - --
1S $ 6[;J.79 0.025 $ 39.84 s 23.15 $ 16.69 40 s .38.SZ 0 .025 s 39.59 s 36.62 s 0 .97 __ .. __ - ·- - - - - -- - - - ---- - --.. --
2() S 644.64 0.025 $ 3'3.84 s 23.72 $ 16.U TOTAL s (0.00) 5 1.593.3.5 S_ l.~.00 $ 593.35 

--- -- - - -- ·-·-·--
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APPENDIX - LLC Management 
Christy J. Jepson was educated at DePaul University in Chicago, Illinois. After graduating and passing 
the Certified Public Accounting exam, he graduated from the John Marshall Lmv School in Chicago, 
lllinois, and he is a licensed attorney practicing law at the law firm of Strecker, Jepson & Associates in 
Lake Zurich, Illinois. Mr. Jepson owns an eleven percent (11 °/o) interest in Senior Homes, LLC, an 
Illinois limited liability company in the real estate development and construction business. Senior Homes, 
LLC owns one hundred percent (l 00%) of the men1bcrship interest in All An1erica Reverse Mortgage, 
LLC, d/b/a pt All An1erica Mortgage, an Illinois limited liability company operating as a licensed 
1nortgage broker in Illinois. Senior Ilomes, LLC o-vvns fift11 percent (50%) of the 1nembership interest of 
the Issuer and each of its designated series. Mr. Jepson has, as an atto1ney, as a shareholder, member, 
director or officer of companies or for his own account, negotiated the acquisition, financing and sale of 
companies and the acquisition, sale, financing ,md leasing of real estate properties, such as office buildings, 
shopping centers and other retail, hotels, restaurant and bars, casinos, condominiums, apa11n1ents, time 
share properties and single family homes. Mr. Jepson has managed and operated a number of co1npanies 
and real estate properties. 

:s 



APPENDIX - LLC Management 
Ran ulfo S. Vizcarra was educated and trained as a physician in the Philippines. Mr. VizcaJTa is the trustee and one 
hundred percent beneficiary of the Ranulfo Trust, ,vhich owns a nineteen percent (19 %) mernbership interest in M2K 
of Chicago, LLC, previously known as M2K, LLC, an Tllinois limited liability company that owns and operates a 
nu1nber of healthcare related companies and real estate properties, and (1 OO°;'o) of M2K of Illinois, LLC, an Illinois 
limited liability company that operates dance studios and M2K of [llinois, LLC owns (49o/o) of LTBR Radio, LLC, 
an Illinois limited liability company in the talk radio business. M2K of Chicago, LLC also owns a fifty percent 
(SOo/o) membership interest in the ltalian Cafe, LLC and each of its designated series. lvlr. Vizcarra is the sole 
Manager of M2K of Chicago, LLC, and an officer, director or manager of all of the corporations or limited I iability 
companies which iV12K of Chicago, LLC has an ownership interest in, including the Issuer. Mr. Vizcarra is also a 
Manager of M2K of Illinois, LLC and LTBR Radio, LLC. Mr. Vizcarra, for his own account, or as a shareholder, 
n1cn1ber, director or officer of the companies in which he serves, has negotiated the acquisition, financing and sale or 
companies n.nd the acquisition, sale, financing and leasing of real estate properties, such as office buildings, shopping 
centers and other retail, restaurants and bars, condominiums, apa11ments and single family homes. Mr. Vizcarra has 
managed and operated a number of companies and real estate properties. 

Over the past 20 years Ranu]fo has built the M2K Health Care Companies into a powerhouse in Illinois generating in 

excess of $60 MJlion in Revenue annually with parts of that revenue being derived from the State of Illinois. The 
Italian Cafe LLC is constructed ,vith Video Gaming to provide income to its Members but also to generate income 
for the benefit of the State ofllJinois. 
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APPENDIX- Statewide Video Gaming Data 
VIDEO GAMING INCOME MARCH 2021 

See Monthly Repo1is at: https//:~rww.igb. illinois.gov/videoreports.aspx 

>- According to the Illinois Gaming Board Report for the month of March 2021 , there were 
7,461 establishments housing 38,926 video gaming machines in \Vhich $2,961,226,046.61 
was played in that month 

~ After the payouts to the players that won, those machines generated profits of 
$246,614,776.05 in total for the month 

> That's an average winnings for that 1nonth of $6,335.48 per licensed machine. An 
establishment with 6 1nachines, the n1axin1um allowed per establislunent, generating the 

average amount per 1nachine would have generated a total of $38,012.88 in winnings for 
the month 

> The establislunent receives 33% of the vvinnings, which is an average net wagering 
income to the establishment with 6 1nachines for the month of March 2021 of $12,544.25 
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APPENDIX - Statewide Video Gaming Data 
~ If the establishment advertises the existence of the 1nachines and comps food or provides 

a match play to the customer of a small amount, $5.00 for instance, it can generate tens 
of thousands per 1nonth 1nore than the average profit per establishn1ent, and far more 
than the establish1nent can generate with food and spirits alone 

~ For instance, 3 of the 7 establishn1ents in the Illinois Gaming Board Repo11 for March 
2021 for Wheeling Illinois had winnings of more than the $38,012.88 average and two of 
the three had \¥innings of $102,195.35 and $90,010.75, respectively 

~ Those establishn1ents 33% share of their video gar11ing winnings for the 111.onth were 
$33,724.36 and $29,703.55, respectively 

> Each Series covers its costs from the n1onthly Base Rent paid pursuant to the Lease by 

the Restaurant and Bar Operator Tenant and the Series n1akes a significant profit from 
the Percentage Rent of 50% of the net Video Gaming Incon1e 

~ The anticipated 840 Million in annual revenues fron1 the States 29o/o of the wi1mings is 
likely to ensure continuation of video gaming in Illinois 


